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Registered Office: 202 2nd Floor Terminal - 9 75 Nehru Road Vile Parle East Mumbai 400099
CIN: L16002MH1974PLC017734
Telephone: (0253) 2594231 (3 Lines) Fax: 2595698
Email: investor@sinnarbidi.com Website: www.sinnarbidi.com

NOTICE OF THE MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 46" Annual General Meeting (' AGM") of the members of Sinnar Bidi
Udyog Limited will be held via Video Conferencing ("VC') facility or other audio visual means
('OAVM) on Thursday, the October 15,2020 at 12:00 noon to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS :

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements (both standalone and
consolidated financial statements) of the Company for the financial year ended 31" March
2020 and the reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Madhav Digambar Deshpande (DIN: 00238917), who
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

3. Toappointa director in place of Ms. Bharati Subhash Sancheti (DIN: 06983828), who retires by
rotation and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment.

SPECTALBUSINESS:

4. Regularization of Additional Director, Mr. Mansur Mheboob Khan (DIN: 00155141), by
appointing him as an Independent Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution, with or without modification as
an ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with schedule IV
and Section 161(1) read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014, and other applicable provisions, sections, rules of the Companies Act, 2013 (including
any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), consent of the
members of the company be and is hereby accorded, to regularise the appointment of Mr
Mansur Mheboob Khan (DIN: 00155141) from Additional Director (Non-Executive &
Independent) to Independent Director (Non-Executive & Independent) to hold office fora
term of 5 consecutive years w e £30" March 2020.”

‘RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors of the company be and are hereby severally
authorized to sign and execute all such documents and papers (including appointment letter
etc.) as may be required for the purpose and file necessary e-form with the Registrar of
Companies and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may considered expedient and necessary
in this regard.”
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Notes:

1.

An Explanatory Statement setting out all the materials facts of Special Business to be transacted in
compliance with Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder is annexed to and
forms a part of the Notice along with relevant details, pursuant to Regulations 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and the Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), in respect of a Director seeking
appointment at this Annual General Meeting is annexed.

At the 44th Annual General Meeting held on 11th September 2018 the Members approved appointment
of Sabadra & Sabadra, Chartered Accountants, Nashik (Firm Registration No. 108921W) as Statutory
Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of five years from the conclusion of that AGM till the
conclusion of the 49th AGM, subject to ratification of their appointment by Members at every AGM, if so
required under the Act. The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of auditors for
ratification by Members at every AGM has been omitted by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with
effect from May 7, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for the ratification of the
appointment of the Statutory Auditors at this Annual General Meeting.

In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed
and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08,2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13,2020
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020,
physical attendance of the Members to the EGM/AGM venue is not required and annual general meeting
(AGM) be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence,
Members can attend and participate in the ensuing EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM.

Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this EGM/AGM.
However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the
EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time
of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of
participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come
first served basis. This will not include large Sharcholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more
shareholding),Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on
account of first come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose
of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is
providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the
AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorizedagency. The facility
of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the
AGM will be provided by NSDL.
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8.

10.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the
Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.sinnarbidi.com. The
Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchange ie. BSE Limited
www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing
the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e.www.evoting.nsdl.com.

AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions ofthe
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020and MCA Circular No.
17/2020 dated April 13,2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.

General instructions for members are as under—

a.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Book of the Company will remain closed from 8" October 2020 to
15" October, 2020 (both days inclusive).

The Company has always encouraged the Members to register their email ID and phone numbers for
ease of communication between the Company and the Members. The Members who have not yet
registered their email addresses are requested to do so with their Depository Participants (DPs) in case
the shares are held by them in electronic form, and with the Registrar & Transfer Agent, Link Intime
India Private Limited in case the shares are held by them in physical form.

In terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI
Listing Regulations”), securities of listed companies can only be transferred in dematerialised form
with effect from April 1,2019, except in case of transmission or transposition of securities. In view of
the above and the inherent benefits of holding shares in electronic form, we urge the shareholders holding
shares in physical form to opt for dematerialization.

If your address or bank details have changed, the Members who hold their shares in physical form are
requested to inform the Company's Registered Office immediately of the change along with their
ledger folio number. The Members who hold shares in electronic form are requested to update their
DPs.

During the 46" AGM, Members may access the scanned copy of Register of Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Act and the
Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section
189 of the Act, upon request made to Company Secretary at investor@sinnarbidi.com

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of the Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. The Members holding shares in
physical form can submit their PAN details to Link Intime India Private Limited or Company. The
Members holding shares in dematerialised form are requested to submit their PAN details to their DPs
with whom they are maintaining their Demat accounts.

The Members desiring any information relating to the accounts are requested to write to the Company
well in advance so as to enable the Management to keep the information ready.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/ OAVM, the Route Map, attendance slip, and Proxy Form is
not annexed in this Notice.
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FORMEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTINGARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on October 11, 2020 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on October 14, 2020
at 5:00 P.M. During this period Members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the Cut-off date of October 7, 2020 may cast their vote by remote e-
voting.The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned
below:

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https:// www.evoting.nsdl.com/
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

Details on Step 1 is mentioned below:
How toLog-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.conv/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
'Shareholders' section.

3. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote
electronically.

Manner of holding shares i .e. Demat | Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical
a) For Members who hold shares in 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
demat account with NSDL. Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300***
and Client ID is 12****** then your user
ID is IN3QQ*** 2% *****

b) For Members who hold shares in 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
demat account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is
[ 2% *dkkk Ak kkk*k** then your user ID is
12**************
¢) For Members holding shares in EVEN Number followed by Folio
Physical Form. Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001***
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001 ***
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4. YourUserID details are given below :

5. Yourpassword details are given below :

a.

If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast
your vote.

If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 'initial
password' which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 'initial password', you need to
enter the 'initial password' and the system will force you to change your password.

How to retrieve your 'initial password'?

(i) Ifyouremail IDisregistered in your demat account or with the company, your 'initial password'
is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your
mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The
password to open the pdffile is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID
for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your
'User ID' and your 'initial password'.

(ii)) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. Ifyouareunabletoretrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password :

a.

Click on “Forget User Details/Password?”’(If you are holding shares in your demat account with
NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name
and your registered address.

Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-
Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8. Now, youwill haveto click on “Login” button.

9. Afteryouclick on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Details on Step 2 is given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting.

Then, click on Active Voting Cycles.
After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you

are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.
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Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote.

4. Now youareready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of

shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when
prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the

confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail
to cssujata.rajebahadur@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to

keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful
attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to
reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-

voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call
ontoll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre at pallavid@nsdl.co.in/ 022-24994545

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring
user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to investor@sinnarbidi.com

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
investor@sinnarbidi.com
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ¢-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS
UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for

remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and

have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they
will notbe eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-

Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FORATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS
UNDER:

1.  Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-
Voting system. Members may access the same at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under
shareholders/members login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be
available in shareholder/members login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note
that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID
and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the
notice to avoid last minute rush. Further members can also use the OTP based login for logging into the
e-Voting system of NSDL.

2.  Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3 Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

4.  Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It
is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid
glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in
advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
investor(@sinnarbidi.com The same will be replied by the company suitably.

6.  Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker on or before 13" October 5.00 pm, will
only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

7.  The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time
forthe AGM.
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 (1) of the Companies Act,2013 :

The following explanatory statement sets out all material facts relating to the special business as mentioned in
the accompanying Notice:

ItemNo.4:

Regularization of Additional Director, Mr. Mansur Mheboob Khan, by appointing him as an
Independent Director of the Company:

The Board, Pursuant to the recommendation received from Nomination & Remuneration Committee and
pursuant to provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 & Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 read with Schedule IV of
the said Act, (including any statutory modifications and re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) in
line with applicable regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, and subject to approval of Members in ensuing Annual General Meeting, appointed Mr Mansur
Mheboob Khan as an Additional Director ( Non Executive and Independent ) w e f 30" March 2020 for the
term of 5 years. Since the appointment is required to be approved by Members in General Meeting the
resolution has been placed before the Members.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has recommended Appointment of Mr. Mansur Mheboob
Khan as an Independent Director of the company as he possesses appropriate skills, experience and
knowledge.

None of the Directors / Key managerial Personnel of the Company- their relatives are, in any way, concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution.

Details of the Directors seeking Appointment at the Forthcoming Annual General Meeting
)In pursuance of Secretarial Standard - 2 on General Meetings)

Name of Director Mansur Mheboob Khan
Date of Birth 19 September 1953 (Age: 66 years)
Date of Appointment 30™ March 2020
Expertise in specific functional areas 1. 30+ years' experience in Bidi business
operations
2. Expertise in Labour Law related matters
Relationship with Other Directors/ Key Not related with Directors or KMP
Managerial Personnel
Directorship in other companies Nil
Committee position held in other companies Nil
No. of meetings of the Board attended during Not applicable
the year
No. of shares held: Nil
(a) Own
(b)For other persons on a beneficial basis
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BOARDS' REPORT
Pursuant to section 134 {3) of Companies Act, 2013)

Dear Shareholders,

The Directors present the Annual Report of Sinnar Bidi Udyog Limited along with the audited financial statements
for the financial year ended March 31, 2020. The consolidated performance of the Company and its Associates has
been referred to wherever required.

1. Corporate Overview:

Sinnar Bidi Udyog Ltd (“Your Company” or “The Company”) is engaged in the activity of trading of Tobacco and
processing of Tohacco. The Company has its corporate head office at Nashik.

2. Finanical Results:

The standalone financial results for the Financial Year 2019-20 are as under :

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Standalone Consolidated

E.Y. 2019-20 EY. 2018-19 EY. 2019-20 EY. 2018-19
Net Sales 547,70 555.36 547.70 555.36
Other Income 1.13 0.56 1.13 0.56
Total Income 548.84 555.92 548.84 553.92
Manufacturing & Other Expenses 571.85 575.96 571.85 575.96
Profit Before Tax & Extraordinary Items (23.02) (20.04) (23.02) (20.04)
Exceptional & Extraordinary Items 0 0 0 0
E;ot[f:: ;rg?:;? ii;t;rsExceptlonal & (23.02) (20.04) (23.02) {20.04)
Current and Deferred Tax {0.18) 0.74) (0.18) (0.74)
Profit / {Loss) After Tax (22.84) (22.78) (22.84) {22.78)
Other Comprehensive Income 0.20 0.04 0.20 0.04
rg;g;: {Loss) After Other (22.63) (20.74) (22.63) (20.74)

3. Business Opcrations :

The company carried on the activities of trading of Tobacco and processing of Tobacco during the financial yvear ended
31 March 2020. The Company's working for the year has resulted in a loss, as seen from the above sutnmary. The Loss is
pritnarily on account of decreasing sales turnover and fixed cost/overheads remaining the same, thus impacting the
margins, The sales turnover reduced from Rs, 555.35 lakhs of the previous financial year to Rs.547.70 lakhs for the
financial year 2019-20. The downward trend in the turnover of the Company since past three years continued in this
year also. This is mainly attributed to the basic nature of the industry in which the company operates. The market
situation at present and also in near future in not conducive to the tobacco prodcuts in which the company deals. In
addition to the stringent regulations on the tobacco industry, the company experienced business slowdown during the
period under review.
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4. Dividend:

In absence of profits, the directors regret their inability to recommed any dividend.

5. Amount carried to the reserves:

No atnounts are proposed to be transferred to the reserves.

6, Change in the nature of the Business:

During the year under consideration, the company has not made any changes in the nature of its business.

7. Status of Company's AiTairs:

Dhuring the year, there was no change in the status of the company. The company is a listed entity and going concern, The
shares of the Company continue to be listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange only.

8. Significant and Material Orders passed:

There were no significant and Material orders passed by any regulators, courts or tribunals which have an impact of
affecting the company's going concern status and operation of the company in the Future.

9. Material Changes and Commitments:

Impactof COVID

The lockdowns and restrictions imposed on various activities due to COVID — 19 pandemic have posed
challenges on all the business operations of the Company. The Company's operations were hit substantially
from 25th March 2020 till the 22* May 2020, when lockdown was gradually lifted. Manufacturing facilities
{factory), Branch Office and admin office were fully shut during such period.

With the lifting of the lockdown restrictions, the Company has started manufacturing activities from 23 May,
2020. However production ramp up will be based on current inventory levels and the Company's estimate of
demand. In the short term, it is therefore expected that manufacturing activity will be below the normal.

The Company is not in a position to quantify the impact on operations but expects normaley to be achieved.
Customer sentiment pointing to reduced spends on discretionary items might impact demand for the
Company's product. The drop in sales is also expected to impact profitability in the near term,

Although, it is not yet possible to ascertain the actual impact on profitability, both qualitatively and

quantitatively yet the business of the Company is significantly impacted due to the lockdown. Simultancously,
the Company continued to incur fixed expenses which would impact the profitability of the Company.
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10. Board of Directors :

The Composition of Board of Directors of the Company is in accordance with the Companies Act 2013. The details of
changes in the composition of Board of Directors during financial year 2019-20 are as under:

Sr No |(Name | Nature of Change Date of Change

1 Mansur M Khan Appointed s Additional Director | 30™ March 2020
(Non executive and Independent)

2 Dhanpal M Shah Resigned as Director 30" March 2020
( Non executive and Independent)

11. Key Managerial Personnel:

The following are the Key Manaperial Personnel of the Company as on 31" March 2020:
1. Mr. Madhav D Deshpande: Chairman, Whole Time Director, CFO

2. Ms. Pratiksha S Shah: Company Secretary

Upon resignation of Mr. Sushil Laddha w e f 14" February 2019, the Company has designated Mr. Madhav D
Deshpande as Compliance officer of the company till the appointment of Company Secretary.

The company on recommendation of Nomination and Remuncration Committee had appointcd Ms, Pratiksha § Shah
(Membership No - A57487} as Company Secretary w.e.f. 22™ April, 2019 and designated her as Compliance Officer of
the Company.

12, Meetings of Directors:

During the financial year 2019-20, the Board of Directors of the Company met five times. The maximum interval
between any two mectings did not exceed 120 days. The details of attendance of Diretors for Board as well as Commiitee
meetings is attached to Boards Report as Annexure- I. The Company has complied with the applicable Secretanal
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

13. Audit Commitee:

During the year 2019-20, the Board had Audit Commitee, which was formulated in terms of the Provisions of
Companies Act,2013 and SEBI {Listing Obligation and Disclosure requirements),2015

The Composition of Audit Committee is as follows -

SrNo | Nzame of Director | Designation
1 Mr. Dhanpal Shah (Independent Director) Chairman

| 2 | Mr. Rajendra Tatiya {Independent Director) | Member

"3 Mr Madhav Deshpande (Whole time Director & CFQ) Member

The Audit Committee duly met four times in FY. 2019-20, details of which are attached to Boards Report as
Annexure- 1. Maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days. The Board has accepted all the
recommendations of Audit Committee.

Mr Dhanpal Shah ceased to be the Chairman and member of Audit Committee w e £ 30" March 2020, as he resigned as
the Director of the company, The Board of Director of the company then appointed Mr Mansur Khan, an Additional
Independent Director of the company as Chairman of Audit Committee w € 15 June 2020.
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14. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has been formulated in terms of the Provisions of
Companies Act,2013 and SEBI {Listing Obligation and Disclosure requirernents),2015

The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Commnittee during F 'Y 2019-20 is as follows —

Sr No Name of Director Designation
| 1 .Mr. Rajendra Tatiya {Independent Director) | Chairman

| 2 .Mr. Dhanpal Shah (Independent Director) | Member

3 Mr. Bhusaheb Pawar (Non Executive Director) Member

| 4 .Ms Bharti Sancheti (Non Executive Director) | Member

The Committee met twice in financial year 2019-20, details of which are atlached to Boards Report as Annexure- 1.

Mr Dhanpal Shah ceased to be the member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee w e £ 30" March 2020, as he
resigned as the Director of the company. The Board of Director of the company then appointed Mr Mansur Khan, an
Additional Independent Director of the company as the member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee w e £15°
June 2020.

15. Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

During the year 2019-20, the Board had Stakeholders Relationship Committee which was formulated in terms of the
Provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI {Listing Obligation and Disclosure requirements), 2015

The Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as follows -

Sr No Name of Director Designation
1 Ms Bharti Sancheti (Non Executive Director) Chairperson
2 Mr. Bhusaheb Pawar (Non Executive Director) Member

The Committee met once in financial year 2019-29, details of which are attached to Beards Report as Annexure- 1.
16, Meeting of Independent Directors:

A Seperate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company was held on 14" February 2020 in terms of Schedule IV
of the Companies Act 2013 details of which are attached to Boards Report as Annexure- 1.
17. Code of conduct for Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel:

The company has framed a code of conduct for all the Board members and senior management of the company. All the
Board members and senior managerial personnel affirm the compliance with the code on annual basis.

18. Directors retiring by rotation and re-appointment:

In terms of provisions of section 152(6)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Madhav Deshpande and Ms Bharati
Sancheti, Directors of the company, retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being ¢ligible,
offer themselves for re-appeintment. The Board recommends their re-appoiniment at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting,

19. Declaration by Independent Directors:

The Company has received the Deelarations from its Indepenent Directors pursuant to section 139(7) to the effect that
they meet the criteria of Independence and the same is duly recorded in the first Board meeting held in the financial year,
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2{). Share Capital:
The Paid up share capital of the Company as on 3 1 March, 2020 was Rs.20,00,000.

During the financial year 2019-20 the company had sub — divided its equity shares. 1 equity share having face value of
Rs.10 each fully paid up has been sub-divided into 2 equity shares having face value of Rs.5 gach. Member's approval
had been obtained through Extra ordinary general meeting held on 6™ March,2019. Thus upon sub division Company's
share capital is altered from 200000 equity shares of Rs.10 each to 400000 equity shares of Rs.5 each, The Company
being a listed entity, Corporate Action for sub division was initiated on 31* July, 2019 which has been taken as record
date for the sub—division of equity shares, by BSE where the shares ofthe company are listed.

Thus face value of shares of the company is changed to Rs 5 per share due to sub division of share capital of the company
we 31" July 2019. Upon subdivision ISIN of the company is changed to INERI6E01023.

21. Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy:

The Company has established a vigil mechanism policy for the directors and its employees to report genuine concerns
about the illegal and unethical practices and behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or the violation of the Company’s
Code of Conduct or the ethics policy without fear of reprisal, and hence to help ensure that the Company continues to
uphold its high standards. The said ploicy is posted on the website of the Company. The Policy is established under
section 1 77(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.

22, Remuneration of Directors and employees:

The disclosures as required under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 5 of the Companies { Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014 are provided in Anrexure—2.

23. Nomination and Remuneration Policy:

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company. The salary payable to the WID and CFO and
Company Secretary is as per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy. This policy also lays down criteria for selection
and appeintment of Board Members and annual evaluation of the performance of every director of the Company. The
same is attached to the Board's Report as Annexure-3.

24, Risk Management Policy:

Risk management is embedded in your Company's operating framework. Your Company believes that managing risks
helps in maximizing returns. The Board has formulated 2 risk management policy for the company, identifying the areas
of risk for the Company and the same has been inplemented.

25.Fermal Annual Evaluation of performance of Board, its Committees and the individual Directors:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclesure
Requirements)Regulations, 2015, a structured questicnnaire was prepared after taking into consideration the various
agpects ofthe Board's funetioning, composition of the Board and its Commiittees, culture, exeeution and performance of
specific duties, ebligations and governance. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was completed
during the year under review.

The nomination and remuneration pelicy lays down the creteria for formal annual evaluation of the performance of the
Board and the individual directors. The perfermance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors
was carried out by the Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The Board of Directors expressed their
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Accordingly thc company has evaluated the performance ofthe Board and the individual directors.
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26, Disclosure regarding the receipt of commission by the Managing Director, Whole Time Director from the
company, its holding or subsidiary company:

The Whole Time Director does notreceive any commission from the company or its associate companies.

27, Statutory Auditors:

At the forty fourth AGM held on September 11, 2018 the Members approved appointment of Sabadra and Sabadra,
Chartered Accountants {Firm Registration No. 108921W) as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a
period of five years from the conclusion of forty fourth AGM till the conclusion of the forty ninth AGM.

28, Statutory Audit Report:
There are no adverse comments or remarks in the Statutory Audit Report provided by the auditors, Sabadra & Sabadra,

Nashik, which require clarification from the directors. The Notes on financial statements are sclf-explanatory, and
need no further explanation.

29, Secretarial Audit Report:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the Board has
appointed M/s JHR & Associates, Company Secretaries, Thane, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The

Secretarial Audit Report in forrm MR-3 is attached to the Board's Report. There is no secretarial audit qualification for
the year under review.

30. Cost Audit:

The provisions for audit of the cost records were not applicable to the Company during the financial year ended 31"
March 2020.

31. Corporate Social Responsibility:

The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding the Corporate Sccial Responsibility are not
applicable to the company. However, the Board of Directors recognize the Company's Social obligations and may incur
the expenses on CSR activities voluntarily, whenever they deem fit.

32, Extract of Annual Return:

The Extract of Annual Return as prescribed under section 92(3) of Companies Act, 2013 is annexed to the Boards
Report in Form MGT-9 as Annexure-4. The web link for extract is www.sinnarbidi.com

33. Directors' Responsibility Statement:

To the best of knowledge and belicf and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your Directors
make the following statement in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

i. thatin the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2020, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating o material departures, if any;

ii. the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so 2s to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
asatMarch 31,2020 and of the loss of the Company for the year ended on that date;

iii. the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Compamies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. theannual accounts have been prepared on a going concem basis;

v. that the Directors had laid down intemnal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
interngl financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

vi. that the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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34, Loans, Guarantees and Investments:

The Company has not given any loans or guarantee or provided security in connection with loan to any other body
corporate or persons as gaverned under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has
neither acquired nor purchased any securities of any other body corporate during the financial year,

35. Related Party Tranactions:

All iransactions entered with Related Parties for the year under review were on arm's length basis and in the ordinary
course of business and the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thersunder are not
attracted,

All related party transactions are mentioned in the Financial Statements. The Company has developed a framework
through Standard Operating Procedures for the purpose of identification and monitoring of such Related Party
Transactions.

The statement of related party transactions is attached to the Board Report in form AQC-2 as Annexure —5.
36. Subsidiary, Associates and Joint Venture Companies;

The Company has two associate companies:

1. Vidarbha Bidi Limited

2. Tip Top Health Zonc Private Limited.

None of the other companies became the subsidiary, joint venture, or Associates companies of the company nor they
ceased to be its subsidiary, joint venture or associate. The details of investments held in Associate Companies is
annexed io the Board Report in form AOC-1 as Annexure-6.

37. Conservation of Energy, Technology, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

The Company has taken steps for conservation of encrgy at its processing plant and office premises. The actvitics of the
Company offer less scope for absorption of Technology.

There was no foreign exchange eamning or outgo during the financial year under consideration.
38. Deposits:

The company has not accepted any deposits in the financial year either from Members or public in terms of section 73
and 76 of the Companies Act 2013,

39, Internal Complaints Committee:

The Intemal Complaints Commitiee constituted under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace {Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, has not received any cases/ compliants during the year.

40. Internal Financial Control with reference to financial Statements:

Your Company has an effective internal control system, which is constantly assessed and strengthened with
new/revised standard operating procedures. The Audit Committee of the Company actively reviews the adequacy and
effectiveness ofthe internal control systems and suggests improvements o strengthen the same.,

41, Corporate Governance:

As per the Regulation 15(2) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, as the paid up equity share capital and Net worth of
the Company is less than the limits mentioned in the regulations, compliance under Regulation 27(2) of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 isnot applicable to the Company.

As such, the requirement for submitting report on Corporate Governance is not applicable to the Company and hence it
does not form a part of this report.
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42, Change of Registered Office of the Company;

The company for operational convenience shifted its Registered Office from Parekh Mahal, 2nd Floor, Room No. 62,
Plot no.8-9, Lady Jamshedji Road, Sakharam Keer Marg, Mahim, Mumbai - 400016 to 202, 2nd Floor, Terminal — 9,
75 Nehru Road, Vile Parle East, Mumbai — 400099 w.e.f. 15th February 2020.

43. Appreciation:

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the contribution made by the employees at all levels but for
whose hard work and support, your Company's achievements would not have been possible. Your Directors also wish to
thank its customers, dealers, agents, suppliers, investors and bankers, Government and Non Government Authorities
for their continued support and faith reposed in the Company.

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors
Sinnar Bidi Udyog Limited

Madhay Deshpande

Chairman, Whole Time Director and CFO
DIN: 00238917

Date: 12” September 2020

Place: Nashik
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Nomination & Remmuneration Committee

Name of Director
St No | Dates of Meeting Rajendra Bharati Bhansaieb |y oal Motilal
. . Subhash Shukhadew
Nemichand Tatiya : Shah
Sancheti Pawar
1 18.04.2019 Yes Yes Yes No
2 09.03.2020 Yes Yes Yes No
Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Name of Director
SrNo | Dates of Meeting | Bharati Subhash Bhausaheb
. Shukhadew
Sancheti
Pawar
1 14.02.2020 Yes Yes
Meeting of Independent Directors
Name of Director
Sr No | Dates of Meeting | Dhanpal Motilal Raj (f:ndra
Necmichand
Shah .
Tatiya
1 14.02.2020 Yes Yes
For Sinnar Bidi Udyog Limited Madhav Deshpande

Laxminayan Karwa
Director
DIN: 00333020

Date: 12th September, 2020
Place: Nashik

Whole Time Director and CFO

DIN: 00238917
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ANNEXURE 2

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO THE REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION:

The disclosures as required under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 5§ of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are as follows:

i)

iiif)

v)

Ratio of remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration :

Ratio of Remuneration paid to Whole Time Director & CFO Mr. Madhav Deshpande to the median
remuneration of employees for the financial year: 46.65

None of the other directors except the Whole Time Director mentioned above was paid any remuneration
during the financial year.

The details regarding percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary in the financial year:

1. Mr. Madhav Deshpande — Whole Time Director and CFO: 4.63%.
2. Ms Pratiksha Shah — Company Secretary; 0.15%.

3. The Company has not paid any remuneration to other directors and has not appointed any other managerial
personnel except above.

The percentage of increase in Median Remuneration of Employees is 30.44% in the financial year.

Number of Permanent Employees on the rolls of the Company is 54,

Point no viii in Rule 5; Disclosure at this pointis not applicable during the financial year 2019-20

Xii)

xiii)
Xiv)

xv)

Itis affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Whole Time Director and Company Secretary is in accordance
with the remuneration policy of the Company.

There is no employee who receives aggrepate remuneration throughout the year in excess of Rs, 60 Lac.
There is no employee who receives the remuneration in excess of Rs. 5 Lacs per month during the year.

No employee of the company along with his spouse and dependent children holds more than 2% of the equity
share capital of the Company.

For Sinnar Bidi Udyog Limited

Laxminarayan Karwa Madhav Deshpande

Director Whole Time Director and CFQ
DIN: 00333020 DIN: 00238917

Date: 12 September 2020

Place: Nashik
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ANNEXURE 3
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

L INTRODUCTION:

The Company considers the human resources as its invaluable assets. This policy on the nomination and remuneration
of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, (KMPs) and other employees have been formulated in compliances with
section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 along with the applicable rules thereto and Clause 49 of the listing agreement, as
amended from time to time in order to pay equitable remuneration to the Directors, KMPs, and the employees of the
Company and to harmonise the aspirations of the human resources consistent with the goals of the Company.

2, DEFINITIOQNS:

Remuneration means any money, or its equivalent given or passed to any person for the services rendered by him and
includes perquisites as defined under the Income Tax Act, 1961

Key Managerial Personnel means

i. The Chief Executive Officer or the mamaging director or the manager or in theirabsence the
Whole Time Director;

ii. The Company Secretary;

iii. The Chief Financial Officer

iv. Such other person as may be prescribed.

Senior Management means the senior management personnel of the Company who are the members of its core
management team excluding the Board of Directors including the Functional Heads.

Committee means the Nomination and Remuneration committee of the Company as constituted or reconstituted by the
Board, in accordance with the Actand the applicable listing agreement and / or regulations.

Company means the Sinnar Bidi Udyog limited
Board means the Beard of Directors of the Company
Directors means the Directors of the Company

Independent Director mcans the Director referred to in section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressiens used in this pelicy and not defined herein but defined in
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning
respectively assigned to them therein.

3. OBJECTIVES AND PURPOSE OF THE POLICY:

The objective of the policy is to ensure that

I The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain, and motivate the
directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;

ii. Relationship of remuneration to performance to is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;

1ii. Remuneration to directors, key manegrial personnel and senior management invelves a balance between fixed
and incentives pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company
and its goals.
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4, CONSTITUTION OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Board has re-constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board on 317 March 2015, This is in
line with the requirements under the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board has the authority to reconstitute this committtee from time to time.

5. ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE:

i. Toguidethe Board in relation to appointment and removal of the Directors, Key Manegerial Personnel and senior
management,

ii. Toformulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of all the directors on the Board.
iii, Toformulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director,

iv. To recommend the Board on remuneration payable to the Direetors, Key Manegarial Personnel and Scnior
Management.

v. Todevise apolicy on Board diversity.

vi. Toidentify the persons who are qualified to be directors and the key managerial personnel in accordance with the
criteria laid down in this policy.

6. POLICY FORAPPOINTMENTAND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR. KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

i The Committee shall identify and ascertain integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for
the appoiniment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommed his/ her appointment, as per
Company's Policy.

ii. A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and expenience for the position he/ she is considered

for appointment. The Committee has authority to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience
possessed by aperson is sufficient/ satisfaction for the position.

iil. The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole Time Director, who has
attained the age of seventy years. Provided that such a person may be appointed as a Whole Time Director
beyond his/ her age exceeding seventy vears with the approval of Shareholders by passing a special resolution.

L. TERM/ TENURE:
a) Managing Director/ Whole Time Director

The Company shall appoint or reappoint any person as its Managing Director, Whole Time Director, or
Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a ime. No reappeintment shal be made earlier than
one year before the expiry of term.

b) Independent Director:

An Independent Direclor can held effice for a term of five years on the Board of the Company and will be
eligible for reappointment on passing a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment
in the Board's Report.

No Independent Director shall hold a office for more than two consecutive terms of upto 5 years, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an independent
Director.

Provided than an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or
associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Beards on which such
Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and three listed
companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-titme Director of a listed company or
such other number as may be prescribed underthe Act.
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1. EVALUATION:

The Committee shall carry out the evaluation of permormance of Direclor, KMP, and senior managment personnel
yearly or atsuch intervals as may be considered necessary.

All the directors are requested annually to provide their assessment of the performance of the Board and its Committees
by way of response to a questionnaire. Additionally, all Board members will be asked to do a self-evaluation of their
performance annually. The performance of exccutive direciors will be evaluated by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. The performance evaluation of Independent Directors shall be done by entire board of directors excluding
the director being evaluated.

1. REMOVAL:

The Committee may recommend with reasons recording in writing, removal of a director, KMP or Senior Management
Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the Companies Act, 2013, rules and regulations and the policy of
the Company.

IV.RETIREMENT:

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act, and the
prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management
Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit ofthe
Company.

7. POLICYFOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS/ KMP/ SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

L. Remuneration to Managing Director/ Whole Time Directors:
The Remuneration / Commission ete. to be paid to Managing Director/ Whole Time Directors, ete. Shall be governed as
per the provisions of the Compamies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder or any enactment for the time being in
force and the approval obtained from the Members of the Company.

The Nomination and Remunaration Committee shall make such recommendations to the Board of Directors as it may
consider the appropriate with regards to the remuneration to Managing Director/ Whole Time Director.

II.Remuneration to Non Executive Directors/ Independent Directors:

A. The Non-Executive / [ndependent Directors may receive sitting fees and such other remuneration as permissible
under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be such as may be recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.

B. All the remuneration of the Non- Executive / Independent Directors (excluding remuneration for attending meetings
as prescribed under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013} shall be subject to ceiling/ lirnits as provided under
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force. The amount of such
remuneration shall be such as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by
the Board of Directors or shareholders, as the case may be.

C. An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be eligible to participate in any
share based payment schemes of the Company.

D. Any remuneration paid to Non- Executive / Independent Directors for services rendered which are of professional in
nature shall not be considered as part of the remuneration for the purposes of clause (B) above if the following
conditions are satisfied:
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i) The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and
ii) In the opinion of the Committee, the director possesses the requisite qualification for the practice of that
profession,

I11. Remuneration to Key Managerial Perssonel and Senior Management:

A. The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management may consist of fixed pay and incentive pay,
in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the Company's Policy.

B.The Fixed pay may include monthly remuneration, employer's contribution 1o Provident Fund, centribution to
pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as decided fromito time.

C.The Incentive pay, ifany, be decided based on the balance between performance of the Cempany and perfermance of
the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided annually or at such intervals as may be
considered appropriate.

8. IMPLEMENTATION:
The Committees may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in supplements and for
better implementation of this policy as considered appropriate

The Committee may delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members.

For Sinnar Bidi Udyog Limited

Laxminarayan Karwa Madhav Deshpande

Director Whole Time Director and CFO
DIN: 00333020 DIN:00238917

Date: 09.03.2020

Place; Nashik
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

ANNEXURE 4

FORM NO. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

(Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Compaanies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:-

i [CIN L16002MH1974PLCO17734
i |Registration Date 30t ugust 1974
iii | Name of the Company Sinnar Bidi Udyog Limited

v

Categoty/ Sub-category of the Company

Public Company; Limited by shares

Address of the Registered office and Contact Details

202, 2nd FLOOR, TERMINAL 9 75,

NEHRU ROAD,

VILE PARLE {EAST)

MUMBALI - 400 099,
Contact Ne. : 022 26100541
E-mazi] ID ; investor@sinnarbidi.com

vi

Whether Listed Company

Yes

vii

Name, Address and Contact Details of Registrar and

Transfer Agent if any

Link Intime India Private Limited 247,
Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Surya Nagar,
Gandhi Nagar, Vikhroli West,

Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400083

Phone Number — 02249186000

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY :-
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total tumover of the company shall be stated :-

Sr. Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turmover of
No, main porducts / services Product / Services the Company
1 Tobacco Sales 46307, 46202 100

111 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING SUBSIDIARY, AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :-

Sr.
No.

Name and Address of
the Company

CIN/GLN

Holding

o4 of
Shares held

Applicable
Section

1

Vidarbha Bidi Limited
Block No. 4, Gurukrupa
Towersold, Kapad Bazar,
Tanaji Peth, Akola,
Maharashtra - 444 00].

U16000MH1991PLC061334

Associate

38.28% 2(6)

Tip Top Health Zone
Private Limted

202 2nd Floor Terminal
9 75, Nehru Road,

Vile Parle (East)
Mumbai - 400099,

U60300MHI1978PTC020144

Associate

24.33% 2 (6)
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IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN {(Equity Share Capital Break up as percentage of Total Equity)
I. Category-wise share holding

Category of Sharehalding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % Change
Sr Shareholders As on 01-04-201% As on 31-03-2020 during
No the year
% of % of
Demat | Physical | Total |Total Shares | Demat | Physlcal | Total | Total Shares
{A) |Sharehciing of Promoler and Promoter Sroup
M1 |indlan
{a) |Individuads ¢ Hindw Undivided Family 84700 0] B4T00 42.3500] 189400 0 163400 42,3500 Q.0000
(b} |Ceaniral Government ! Stata Govemmant{s) I 0| 0 G.0000 0y 0 0| 00000  0.0000
[¢} |Financial Institutions / Banks I 9 0 0.0000 i 0y 0 00000  0.0000
@ |Any Cther (Specity} 0.0000 0.0000] 0.0000
Bodies Corporata B2100) 0] 82100 310800 124200 v, 124200 310500 0.0000
Sulz Tetal (A){1) 146800/ O] 146800 73,4000 293600, 0Ol 293600 7340001  0.0000
2 |Foreign 0.0000 0.0000| 0.0000
fal |Indhviduels (Non-Resident Individuals / Forgign Individuals} 4 a Q 0.0000] 0 0 | 0.0000] 0.0000
i) |Government [l o 0 00000 o [} of 00000 0.0000
je} |[institvtions 0 0 0 0.0000 D ] of 0.0000]  0.0000
[d] |Foreign Fortfollo Investor 4 0 0 00000 0 0 o 0.0000 0.0000
(el |any Other {Specity) 60000 o0po0o] 00000
Sub: Total (A)(2) o o) [ 0.0000 o o 0 0.0000] 00000
Tolal Sharehoking of Fremaber and Promebar
GrouptAl={AN 1 HAND) 146800 o| 148800 73.4000| 293800 o| 293600 73.4000| 0.0000
(B] |Public Sharaholding 00000 00000 0.0000
[1] |Instiions 0.0000 00000  0.0000
(@) |Mutual FundsfUTI o, 0 Q 0.0000] o, o | 0.0000] 0.0000
&) |venture CapHal Funds 0 0 a G.0000| 0 0 l]| 00000 0.0000
[c} |Altemate Invesiment Funds H 9) 0 00000 H Y 0[ 09000  0.0000
(@) |Foreign Venture Capital Investors [ 0 0 0.0000 0 i of 0.0000| 0.0000
e} |Foreign Portfolio Investor 4 0 0 0.0000] 0 0 0[ 0.0000] 0.0000
(f} |Financial Institions / Banks: 5] 0 0 0.0000 5 v l}l 0.0000) 0.0000
{g) |imsurance Companies [ 0| [ 0.0000 o o of 0.0000]  0.0000
(h) |Provident Funds/ Penslen Funds 0 | 0 0.0000 D 0 | 00000 00000
Wy [any Olher (Speciiy) 00000 0.0000] 0.0000
Sub: Tetal (B)(1) o o) 0 0.0000 o o 0 0.0000] 0.0000
[2] |Ceniral Government! Slate Government{s¥ Presidani of India GO0 L0000 Q.0000
Sub: Total [B){2) o 0 0 0.0000 O o [+ 0.0000 0.0000
[3] |Mon-Institutions 0000, 0.0000]  0.0000
[l |Individuals 0.0000 Q.0000 Q.0000
Indvidued gharehalders helding nominal share capltal upto Rs,
[y |7lakh 13480 3BG00| 52080 26,0400 334401 70820 104380 26,0900 0.0900
|ndvidual sharehclders holding nominal share capital In
[y |excess of Rs. 1 lakh o 0 0 0.0000 o o | 0.0000) 0.0000
[B) |NBFCs reglstered with RBI 0 0 0 0.0000] 0 0 0 00000 0.0000
{d) |Overseas Depositories{holding DRs) (balancing figure) I 9) 0 00000 M 0 0 00000  0.0000
(@) [Any Cther (Specity} 0.0000 0.0000] 0.0000
Hindu Undivided Family 220 0 220 4.1100 440 0 440 0.1100 0.0000
Bodlieg Corporata 150, 9 150 0.0750 00 1300 1600 04000 03250
Sub Tatal (B)(3) 100| 650 750 03750 32180 72220l 106400 26.6000| 26.2250
Tolal Public Shareholding{B)=(B){1]+{BX2y(B}2) 13550 39250' 53200 26,6000/ 34180 72220 106400 26,6000 Q.0000
Total {A+(B) 160750 38256 200000 100.0000] 327780 72220 AG0OGO0 1000000 0.0000
{CG) |Mon Prometer - Non Public Q.00 Q.00
(C1] Shares Underying DRs £.0000] 0.0000]  0.0000
[1] |Custedlan/CR Holder 0.0000| 0 0 [+ 0.0000] 0.0000
{C2] Shares Hald By Employes Trust H 9 0 00000 00000  0.0000
Employee Banefit Trust {undet SEBI {Share basad Employee
[2] |Benafit) Reguiations, 2014) 0.0000 i ) 0 00000  0.0000
Total {AFHBI+(C) 160750]  3ezso| zoo000]  oopooo] 327r7eo|  72ezo|  4cocoo]  1oo.00c0]  0.0000

* The company had sub - divided its equity shares during 2018-19. One equity share having face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up has been
sub-divided into two equity shares having face value of Rs.5 each. Member's approval had been obtained through Extra erdinary general
meeting held on 6th March,2015. Thus upon sub division Company's share capital is altered from 200000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each to
400000 equity shares of Rs.5 each. However, the Company being a listed entity, Corporate Action for sub division was initiated on 31st
July,2019 which has been taken as record date for the sub — dlvision of equity shares, by BSE where the shares of the company are listed.
Therefore, the number of shares of the company as on 31st March,2019 are continued as 2,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each as per
records with Registrar and TransferAgent (RTA). Face value of Share of company is changed to Rs. Spershare wef31st July 2015

46" ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 (:26)




SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

-a8ed snotaazd uo ajou a1 Jad SE S2IRYS JO UOISIAIPGNS 0) anp paSurya s1 sareys Jo o ‘sSmploy ut a8ueld oN] ,

G

0 0 vel 009£67 0 Vel 0089%1 TVLOL
0 0 [A:Y4 008911 0 [A T4 00¥8S | penwry sosudiajuy weywgsey| g
0 0 §L6'T 00611 0 CL6'T 0568 EpTeg uresiseq [eues( L
0 0 s0°0 00t 0 00 001 BIPOSIS ARATA BIR[HYS| 9
0 0 $6L'T 08111 0 €6L°C 065¢ EpIES WeInseq [E[Ues]| €
0 0 $80'0 OrE9€ 0 $£80'6 0LTI8I BPIES [B[UBSDY] URAlD|  f
0 0 $85°0C 0rees 0 $85°0C OLTTH Epley WERINSe [B[Uesy) ¢
0 0 ¢RI 00FL 0 81 00LE payurry suodxg §IS| €T
0 0 98’9 il 0 98’9 0TLE] epreg [ejuesry Jueiysg| |
SRS
184 [¥103 0} p Aneduod Auedmor
) uLmnp saIeys
aIquUInIud ay saIeqg M SIS
durpfoyaaeys [¥10) 0} PAI3QENIUD
/padpard | Josaieygs | jJoroN Josamygs | joroN
) g 2100 10 © /padpard saaeys Jo v, 2101 10 ©
a1 23uey)) v, m......\”— 830 J0 % €30} JO 2%
o

Iead Ay Jo pus g} Je JuIpOy2aeyy

AB3A 3] Jo Suruutdaq 2 e JuIpoqIBgS

e N SIIP[OYIIEYS

ON IS

$I2)0uI0 L] Jo SUIP[OYIIBYS

3

46" ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20




SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

o)

adueyq"y oN :(23uey> ouw 51 31313 J1 AJraads asearg) Surpjoyateyg siowosg ui 280EY)

"I

£0°0 1114 UVHA HHL 40 dNd HHL IV

<00 00< 001 6107 v T0 UOTS[AIDANE 0] INP S3I0YS JO I3qUimd Of Uoppy

€00 001 0 001 VAIJOSIS FHAIA VHYTTIHS L

€81 00r.L UVHA HHL 40 INE THIL IV

81 00rL Q0LE 6107 3ny 20 UOISLATPNS 03 20p $ITEUS 30 J2UING Ut LOLIPEy

£8'1 00LE 0 LHAY L1 SIF0OdXH 51.8 g

SL6°T aosIl HAVHA HHL A0 ONH THL IV

€L6'T aosIl 0568 6107 20y 70 UOISIAIPYNS O] 2NP SSIeys 10 l3qUmd Ul Demppy

CL6°T 0565 0 0565 YTAYS WY HLLSVH TV INYSIA <

089 OFPLT UVYHA 9HL 40 ONd HHL IV

989 L)) o F A OTLET 610T 1Y 20 UOISIAINS 0] TP $5IRYS JO JRUING UL UMPPRY

989 0TLET 0 AR VIAVS TVINVSIN DNVHIHHS 4

CROA OrEsStE AVHAHHL 40 ANH FHL I¥

S80°6 OFesE 0LI81 §107 8NV Z0 UOISLAIRAUS 0 2P S2IEYS 10 IqUImll UT ToTppy

580°6 0L181 0 0L181 VOUVS TVINVSI NVHIA £

BE'ET 0Z5E6 YvdA HHL 40 ANH IHL IV

BE'ET 0T5E6 0GL9¢ 6107 20y 70 UOISIATDMNS 0 SNP S3IeYS JO IBUING UT UCTPRY m

BE'ET 09L5t 0 Wi VIHVYS WY ULLSVH TV INVSTA 4 Q./
P
-

6T 008911 AVHA HHI A0 AN THL IV ”

6T 00891 00r3s 6107 30y 70 UOISLAIPQNS 0] Anp S3Tels JO Iaquind uf uolnppy [~

Al Y4 00v8s 0 0orss JHLIALT SASMIJIALNT TEVHIESYY I m

ANVIINOD aOTIH ANVIHWOD aOTdH M
THLIO STIVHS| STHVYHS STAVHS NOLLDVSNVAL | FHLAO STHVHS STHYHS M
TVLOLAO % A0 ON a0 "ON A0 AI¥d TVYLOLAO % JA0ON uongassuEa], Jo 3dL] 2 N

307 1% SUIPOYPIEGS YAPEMMN,) | J%3A Jq) BOLINP SH01IEsaEL] 30 Suynupdaq oy Ju SuiplogAIEyg ON IS m
E
)
=




SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

iv. Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of

GDR and ADRs)
Sharcholding at the beginning Cumulative Sharcholding at the
Sr. of the year ( as on 01.04.2019) end of the year - ( as on 31.03.2020)
No. Name & Type of Transaction NO.OF SHARES| % OF TOTAL NO OF % OF TOTAL
HELD SHARES OF THE SHARES | SHARES OF THE
COMPANY HELD COMPANY
1 | MANDAR GANESH RAJENDRA 300 0.15 5200 1.30
2 | HARSHA HITESH JAVERI 2350 118 4700 118
3 | SHASHIKANT GANAFATI BAGEWADI 2050 1.03 41400 1.03
4 | HITESH RAMIIL JAVERI 1900 0.95 3300 0.95
5 | SUNILDATTA VINAYAK LAD 1450 0.73 2900 0.73
6 | SHISHIR RAMDAS BARKALE 500 0.25 2840 07
7 | LAXMINARAYAN MOHANLAL KARWA 1250 0.63 2500 0.63
8 |JAGDISH SHANKAR KULKARNI 1000 0.50 2300 0.58
9 | GOVERDHAN BHAGIRATH HEDE 1150 0.58 2300 0.58
10 | SATISH PRABHAKAR PATIL 1100 0.53 2200 0.35

Note:
1. Paid up Share Capital of the Company (Face Value Rs. 5.00) at the end of the yearis 400000 Shares.
2. The details of holding has been clubbed based on PAN.
3. % of total Shares of the Company is based on the paid up Capital of the Company at the end of the Year,

v. Shareholdings of Directors and Key Manaperial Personnel :

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
SrNo .. .
begioning of the year during the year
% of total % of total
For Each of the Directors and KMPs No of Shares shares of the |No. of Shares | shares of the

compary Company
| Madhav Digambar Deshpande 100 0.05 200 0.05
2 Bhausaheb Shukhadew Pawar 150 0.08 300 0.08
3 Dhanpal Motilal Shah* 0 0,00 0 0.00
4 Bharati Subhash Sancheti 240 012 480 0.12
5 Laxminarayan Mohanlal Karwa 1250 0.63 2500 0.63
6 Rajendra Nemichand Tatiya ] 0.00 0 0.00
7 Mansur Maheboob Khan** 0 0.00 ] 0.00
At the end of the year 1740 0.87 3480 0.87

* Mr Dhanpal Shah resigned as Director w.e.f, 30th March 2020
** Mr Mansur Khan appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. 30th March 2020
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V INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the company inchuding interest outstanding/ accrued but not due for payment

SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

iezrrsfi}:;: Unsecured Deposits Total
xeud g loans P Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of
the year
i Principal Amount 16591363 0 0 16591363
ii Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
iii Interest accured but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 16591363 0 0 16591363
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
Addition 1217936 1217936
Reduction 0 0 0 0
Net Change 1217936 0 0 1217936
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
i Principal Amount 17809299 0 0 17809299
i1 Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
i Interest accured but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+iitiii) 17809299 0 0 17809299
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

¥1I REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A,

Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole Time Directors and/ or Manager:

S5r No

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MDY/ WTD/ Manager

Tatal Amount

Whole Time

Director Mr.
Madhay

Deshpande

Managing
Director:
N.A.

Manager:
N.A.

{Gross Salary

L ¢

o

{a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

2,715,727.00 - -

2,715,727.00

(b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of Income
Tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of Salary under section
17(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961

Steck Option

Bweat Equity

Commission

as a % of Profit

Orthets, specify

Others, please specify

TOTAL {A)

2,715,727.00 - -

2,715,227.00

Cciling as per the Act

Remuneration to other directors: NOT APPLICABLE

SrNo

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total Amount

1

Independent Directors

meetings

Fees for attending board and committee

Comimission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non- Executive Directors

meetings

Fees for attending board and committes

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)= (1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Over Managerial Ceiling as per Act
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/ Manager / WTD :

Date: 12th September 2020
Place: Nashik

Sr No Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Key Managerial Personnel Total Amgunt
Chief Financial g“’“pm”i Chief
Officer : Mr. ML.D. ecr—.?:tary. Exccutive
hpandc* Pratiksha | & fficer: N.A.L
Deshp Shahi#
1 Gross Salary
(2) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1} of the Income Tax Act, - 361,919.00 3161,9192.00
1961
(b) Value of perquisitcs w's 1 7(2) of _ _ _
Income Tax Act, 19561
{2) Profits in licu of Salary under section _ _ _
17(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission - -
as a % of Profit - -
Others, specify - - -
5 Others, pleasc specify - - -
TOTAL - 36191500 6191900
* Mr. M.D.Deshpade is the Whole Time Director as well as Chief Financial Officer.
The company does nhot pay separate remunetation to the CFO
# Ms Pratiksha Shah is appointed as Company Secretary w ¢ f 22nd April 2019
VII PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENTS/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES ; NIL
e ey g
Type . Brief Description _ (RD/ NCLT/ | Made, if any
Companies Compounding fees Court) (give details)
Act imposed
A, COMPANY
Penalty
Puonishment
Compounding
B. LIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
C.OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Puonishment
Compounding
For Sinnar Bidi Udyog Limited
Laxminarayan Karwa Madhav Deshpande
Director Whole Time Director and CFO
DIN: 00333020 DIN:00238917
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

ANNEXURE 5
FORM NOAOC -2

{Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-sections (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the Compamies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in
sub-section (1) of section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under thirs proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arms length basis: Not applicable

(a) Narme(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

rd

{b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions

/

(c) Duration of the contract/ arrangements/ transactions

/

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any

/

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions

V.

(f) Dates of approval by the Board

/

{g) Amount paid as agdvances, if any:

/

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in
general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

/

1, Details of material contracts or arrangemenits or transactions at arms length basis

L M/s Shrirang Kisanlal Sarda

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

M/s Shrirang Kisanlal Savda (Promoters are Partners
in the firm)

(b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions

Availing of services

{¢) Duration of the Contracts/ arrangements/ transactions

The contract is governed by the provisions of Companies
Act, 1956 and continuing one,

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Rent Paid Amount :
transactions including the value, if any Rs. 6,00,000 /-
() Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any 14th February 2019
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL
II. Rashikari Enterprises Limited
{a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Rasbihari Enterprises Limited

(Companies have common Diregtors)

(b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions

Availing of services

{c) Duration of the Contracts/ arrangements/ transactions

The contract is governed by the provisions
of Companies Act, 1956 and continuing one.

{d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements

Factory and Godown rent paid Amount :

transactions including the value, if any Rs. 4,22 400 /-
{&) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any 14th February 2019
{f) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL
For Sinnar Bidi Udyog Limited
Laxminarayan Karwa M.D.Deshpande
Director Whole Time Director and CFO
DIN: 08333020 DIN: 00238917

Date: 12" September, 2020
Place: Nashik
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

ANNEXURE 6

Disclosure relating to investment of Sinnar Bidi Udyog Ltd in
following associates companies.

FORMAOC-I

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiary/

associate companies/ joint venture

PART A Subsidiaries NIL
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. )

1
2
3
4

Lh

Serial No
Name of the Subsidiary
The date since when subsidiary was acquired

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company's reporting
period

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant ;jnancial year in case of
foreign subsidiary

Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus
Total Assets

Total Liabilities
Investments
Turnover

Profit before taxation
Provision for taxation
Profit after taxation
Proposed Dividend
% of Shareholding

Notes : The following information shall be fumished at the end of the Statement

Names of the subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations : NIL

Names of the subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year:  NIL
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PART B: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to
Associate Companies and Joint Yentures

Name of the Associates / Joint Yentures

Vidarbha Bidi Limited

Tip Top Health Zong
Private Limited

1. Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date

31" March 2020

31" March 2020

Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was
associated or acquired

31“March 1997

31" March 1998

2. Shares of Associates/ Joint Ventures held by the

Company on the year end
No. 39,590 Equity Shares 3,650 Equity Sharcs
Amount of Investment in Associates/ Joint Venture Rs. 4,68,419.00 Rs. 8,77,352.00
Extend of Holding % 38.28% 24.33%

- . . Control of Share Capital | Control of Share Capital

3. Description of how there is significant influence more than Zﬁ%p more than 20%p
4. Reason why the associate/ joint venture is not

consolidated
5. Networth attributable to Sharcholding as per [atest

Audited Balance Sheet -7,82,763 27,19,094
6. Profit/ Loss for the year to the extent of holding -1,86,308 20,228
i. Considered in Conselidation Nil 20,228

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

Profit not considered in
consolidation as we have
made provision of
diminution
in the value of shares.

For Sinnar Bidi Udyog Limited

Laxminarayan Karwa M.D.Deshpande
Director

DIN: 00333020

Date; 12" September, 2020

Place; Nashik

DIN: 00238917

Whele Time Director and CFO
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FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members,

Sinnar Bidi Udyog Limited

Registered Office:

202, 2" Floor, Terminal - 9, 75, Nehru Road,
Vile Parle {East), Mumbai, Maharashtra-400099

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Sinnar Bidi Udyog Limited CIN: L16002MHI1974PLC017734 (hereinafter called 'the
Company'). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reascnable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and alsc the information / representations given by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
bas, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31" March 2020, complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 2nd compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:-

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2020 according to the provisions of:

i. TheCompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA”") and the rules made thereunder;
iii, The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder (Not applicable to
the Company during audit period);
v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 {('SEBI Act'): -
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during audit period);
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based employee benefits) Guidelines, 2014 (Not
applicable to the Company during andit period);
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008
(Not applicable to the Company during audit peried);
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars 10 an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companics Act and dealing with ¢licnt;
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g The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not
applicable to the Company during andit period);

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not
applicable to the Company during audit period);

i. SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.

j- The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Issuc and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redecmable
Preference Shares) Regulations, 20 3; - (Not applicable to the Company during audit period).
k. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018,

There are no laws which specifically apply to the type of activities undertaken by the company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: -
i. Secretanal Standards issued by The Institute of Cornpany Secretaries of India as in force from time to time,
ii. TheListing Apreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review, barring one instance of delayed filing of form DPT-3 in respect of one time retum of
exempted deposits, the Company has complied with the provisions of Act, Rules, Regulations Guidelines, etc.
menttoned above.

We further report that: -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that tock place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice of at least seven days is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda are sent generally seven days in advance and a systern exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous
and no dissenting views have beenrecorded.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company which commensurate with the size and
operations ofthe Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, mules, regulations and guidelines

Place: Thane For JHR & Associates
Date: 29" June 2020 Company Secretaries
S.J. Ranade
(Partner)

ACS: 33416, CP: 12520
UDIN : A0033416B000394766
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The Members,

Sinnar Bidi Udyog Limited

Registered Office:

202 2nd Floor Terminzl - 9 75 Nehru Road
Vile Parle East Mumbai Maharashtra 400099

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the comeciness of'the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that comrect facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices,
we followed provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

3 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the company.

4. Where ever required, we have oblained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening ofevents etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Qur examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the afTairs of the company.

Place: Thane For JHR & Associates
Date: 29" June 2020 Company Secretaries
S.J.Ranade
(Partner)

ACS:33416,CP: 12520
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the standalone financial statements of SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

{“the Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at 315t March 2020, and the standalone statement

of profit and loss, and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 1n the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and its profit/loss, and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 1s matenally inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
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financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

* Evaluate the appropnateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. OQur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
ccasc to continuc as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in amanner that achieves fair presentation,

‘We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these maitters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
Annexure A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Standalone Cash
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Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

{(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies { Accounts) Rules, 2014,

{(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3 1st March, 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 1s disqualified as on 3 1st March, 2020 from being
appointed as a director interms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repaort in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

(i) TheCompany doesnot have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position

(1)) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

{(111) There has been no delay in transferning amounts, required to be fransferred,

to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company

For SABADRA & SABADRA

Chartered Accountants

Anant N, Sabadra
Place : Nashik (Registration No. 33683)
Date : 29th June 2020. FRN:108921W.

UDIN : 20033683AAAAAI2101
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ANNEXURE 'A’' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even date)
Report on Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (*the Order’) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013
('the Act') of SINNAR BIDI1 UDYOG LIMITED ('the Company'}

1 Inrespect of the Company's fixed asscts;

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance
with a regular program of verification which, in our opinicn, provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanations given to us, nomaterial discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us
and based on the examination of the conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title
deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are
held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

ii As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

il As informed to us the Company has not granted loans, unsecured, to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. The terms and conditions of grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company. There is no schedule of repayment of the loan granted and the account is regular and it is
not overdue. The payment of interest is regulac

v As explained to us, Company has not granted any loan, investments, guarantees and secunty
during the year ended as at 31st March 2020,

v The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits
accepted from the public are not applicable

vi  As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on
by the company.

vii  According to the information and explanations given tous, in respect of statutory dues:

a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-
Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any
other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in
arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they
become payable.
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b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax cutstanding on account
of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks and financial institutions. The

Company has not 1ssued any debentures.

The Company has notraised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not
applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given fo us, ne
fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed
orreported during the year,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188
of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has not made preferential allotinent or private placement of shares
and henee reporting under clause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to
its Directors and hence provisions of Section 192 ofthe Act are not applicabie.

In cur opinion, the company is net required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clanse 3 (xvi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

For SABADRA & SABADRA
Chartered Accountants

Anant N. Sabadra,

Place : Nashik (Registration No.33683)
Date :-29th June 2020 FRN : 108921W.

UDIN : 20033683AAAAAI2101
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on
the Standalone Financial Statements of SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over standalone financial reporting of SINNAR
BIDI UDYOG LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company'’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over standalone financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note onAudit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institite of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
intermal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companics Act, 2013,

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
standalone financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companics Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intcrnal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over standalone financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over standalone financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over standalone financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of intemal financial controls over standalone financial reporting, assessing the risk thata
material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
confrol based on the assessed misk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over standalone financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Standalone Financial Reporting

Acompany's internal financial control over standalone financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of standalone financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over standalone financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepied accounting
principles and that receipts and expenditurcs of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a maierial effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Standalone Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over standalone financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls over standalone financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over standalone financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
systemn over standalone financial reporting and such internal financial controls over standalone financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over standalone
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considenng the essential components of internal

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Standalone Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForSABADRA& SABADRA
Chartered Accountants

Anant N. Sabadra,
Place : Nashik (Registration No.33683)

Date :-29th June 2020 FRN:108921W.
UDIN : 20033683AAAAAI2101
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2020

SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

Particulars Note 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
No RUPEES RUPEES
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 3 3,904,029 4,280,917
Intangible assets 3 - -
Financial Asscts
Investments 4 5,814,516 5,794,288
Other Financial Assets 5 693,013 691,647
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 6 1,210,000 1,192,000
11,621,558 11,958,852
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 7 55,436,135 67,254,779
Financial Assets
Trade Receivable 8 23,418,673 21,181,412
Cash and Bank Balances 9 172,860 59,345
Current Tax Asset (Net) 10 31,175 332,747
Orther Current Assets 11 247,757 208,187
79,306,600 892,036,474
Total 90,928,158 100,995,326
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share Capital 12 2,000,000 2,000,000
Onther Equity 13 36,708,645 41,971,943
41,708,645 43,971,943
LIABILITIES
NON-CURERENT LIABLITIES
Financial Liabilities
Long -Term Borrowings 14 7,009,299 8,191,363
Provisions 15 25,876,873 23,777,880
32,586,172 31,969,243
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Lizbilities
Short-Term Borrowings 16 10,800,000 8,400,000
Trade Payable 17 3,070,748 13,549,480
Employee Benefit Oblipation 18 1,164,718 876,426
Provisions 19 331,934 372,489
Other Current Liabilities 20 965,942 1,855,745
16,333,342 25,054,140
Total 00,928,158 100,995,326
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1&2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 29 to 38

As per our report of even date

For SABADRA & SABADRA,
Chartered Accoumntants,

Anant N, Sabadra,
Mem. No. 033683
FRN:108921W
Place : Nashik

Date : 29th June 2020

For and on behalf of the Board

Laxminarayan Karwa
DIN - 00333020

Madhav Deshpande
DIN - 00238917

Pratiksha Shah
Membership No
Date : 29th June 2020

Director

WTD and CFO

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

A-57487
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STATEMENT OF STANDALONE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318ST MARCH 2020

Particulars Refer Note 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
No. RUPEES RUPEES
Income
I Revenue from Operations 21 54,770,307 55,535,722
IT Other Income 22 113,355 55,974
Il Total Revenue (I) 54,883,662 55,591,696
Expenses
Cost of material consumed 23 35,950,294 35,516,073
Employee Benefits Expense 24 10,027,320 11,036,446
Finance Cost 25 2,185,303 3,209,994
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 3 378,970 456,572
Other Expense 26 6,544,308 5,982,561
Exchange rate difference 27 2,098,993 1,393,970
IV  Total Expenses 57,185,188 57,595,616
YV Profi¢ for the Year (2,301,527) (2,003,920)
VII Tax Expenses
Current Tax - -
Prior Period Tax - 2,340
Deferred Tax (18,000) 72,000
(18,000) 74,340
VIII Profit / (Loss) for the year (2,283,527) (2,078,260)
VI  Other Comprehensive Income
Other Comprehensive income from Associates. 28 20,228 4,208
Profit / (Loss) before Tax (2,263,299) (2,073,962)
Earning Per Equity Share of Face Value of $/- each. (5.66) (10.37)
Basic (5.66) (10.37)
Diluted
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1&2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the
financial statements 29 to 38.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For SABADRA & SABADRA, Laxminarayan Karwa Dirgctor
Chartered Accountants, DIN - 00333020
Madhav Deshpande WTD and CFO

Anant N, Sabadra,

Mem, No. 033683

FRN:108921W
Place : Nashik
Date : 29th June 2020

Pratiksha Shah
Membership No
Date : 29th June 2020

DIN - 00238917

Company Secrctary and Compliance Officer
A-57487
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

Particulars 31.03.20 31.03.19
RUPEES RUPEES
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Mt Profit Before Tax and Extracrdinary Items {2,301,526) (2,003,920}
AD EN FOR :
Depreciation 378,970 436,572
{Gain) / Losy on Salcs of Fixed Asyots (et} 163 -
Adjust. Relaring to Earlier Year (Net) / Extraordinary Items Z.098 993 1,393 970
Interest Paid 2,185,303 3,209,994
Dividend an Investments (10.682) (R.628)}
Operating Profit Before Worldng Capltal Cheanges 2,381,201 2,047,978
ADJUSTMENTS FOR MOVEMENT IN WORKING CAPITAL
Trade Payable {10,478,732) (3,783,475
Employes Benefit Obigation 28R,292 54,76
Short -Term: Provisions {40, 558) {40,125
Chher Current Liabilitics (889 B03) (295,110}
Trade Receivable (2,237,261) 16,650,197
Orther Current Asscts (35,5700 1,182
Inventories 11,818,616 5,359,355
Cash Generated from Operations 772,237 21,994,704
Direct Taxes Refund S [ Paid ) Net 301 zS?D -
Cash Flow Before Extra Ordinary Items 1,073,807 21,994,704
MNet Cash from f(used In) Operating Activities {A) 1,073,807 21,994,704
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Propenty, plant and cquipment (4,245 (12,595
Sale of Propery, plant and equipment 2,000 -
Balances not considersd as Cash and Cash Equivalents
- Placed (nct} - -
Sale of Invegtmenis - Non Currgnt - -
Dividend Received on Inveatmcnts 10,6882 8,638

Invesiment in FIOR _ _
Interest Roccived -
Net Cash from f{used in} Investing Actlivities (B) 8,437 |3I952I

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Intcreat Paid (2,185,303 (3,209,994)
Unclaimed Dividend Poid - -
Proccecds from Long-term Berrowing (1,182,064) {18,826,055)
Procesds fram Shor-term Borrowing 2,400,000 -
Procceds from Other Financial Asscts {1,364) as6
Net Cash from /(used in} Financing Activitiey {C) 59631‘733 ’ 522=|].1 5=693!
Net Cash Inflow/ (OutMow) (AYHBIHT) 113,511 (44,945)

Cash and Cash Equivalents ay at 01.04,2019

{Opening Balance) o) 59,349 104,294
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31.03.2020

{Closing Balanec) (E) 172,860 59,343
Ncet Increase £ (Decreasc) In Cash

{ash Equivalents (X) - (In) 113,511 (44,945)
Note :

Direct taxes paid are treated as arsing from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies { Noie 1&2 )
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements - 29 to 38.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For SABADRA & SABADRA, Laxminarayan Karwa Dircetor
Chartered Accountants, DIN - 00333020

Madhav Deshpande WTD and CFQ

Anant N. Sabadra, DIN - 00233517

Mem. No. 033683

FRN:108921W Pratiksha Shah Company Secretary and Compliance Qfficer
Place : Nashik Membership No A-57487

Date 1 29th June 2020 Date : 20th June 2020
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2020

NOTE: 1
CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sinnar Bidi Udyog Ltd. ("the Company"}) is a company domiciled in India, with its registered office
situated at 202, 2nd Floor, Terminal - 9, 75, Nehru Road, Vile Parle {East), Mumbai-400099. The
Company has been incorporated under the provisions of Indian Companies Act and its equity shares are
listed on the BSE Limited in India. The Company is primarily involved in Tobacco processing business.

NOTE 2:
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1) Statement of Compliance

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted
Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as "IND AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from April 1, 2016.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IND AS as notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013.

2) Use of Estimates

The preparation and presentation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual result and
estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / materialized

3) Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of products is recognized on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of
ownership to the buyer which coincides with dispatch of products to customers.

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis. Dividend income on investment is accounted for
when right toreceive is established.

4) Property Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant, & equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes or levies (net of recoverable taxes) and
any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to their working condition for intended use.

Profit or Loss on disposal / scrapping / write off / retiremnent from active use of an item of property, plant
and equipment is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

Depreciation/ Amortization

The company has assessed the useful lives of fixed assets as per Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, depreciation has been computed on useful lives based on technical evaluation of relevant
class of assets including components thereof, Useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually,
Depreciation is provided as per the written down value method computed basis useful lives of fixed assets
as follows:

Buildings : 60 years
Plant & Machinery : 10 years
Office Equipments : 5 years

Fumniture and fixtures : 10 years
Vehicles : 10 vears

Information technology equipment : 3 years

Freehold land is not depreciated, Leasehold land and related improvements are amortized over the period
ofthe lease.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost as of the date of acquisition, as applicable, less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment, if any.

Intangible assets consist of rights under licensing agreement and software licenses which are amortized
over license period which equates the useful life ranging between 2-5 years on a written down value basis.

5) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

Cash and Cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of
three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of
balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

The Company has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value of equity investments not held for trading.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial asscts arc mcasured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income on mitial recognition. The transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognized in profit or loss
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Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Equity Instruments

An cquity instrumment 1s a contract that cvidences residual interest in the assets of the company after
deducting all of its liabilitics. cquity insttuments recognized by the Company are recognized at the
proceeds received net off direct issue cost.

Investment in associates

Investment in associates are measured at cost less impairment,

6) Inventories

a) Raw materials, packing material and consumables are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. Stores and spare parts are carried at lower of cost
and net realizable value. Finished goods produced or purchased by the Company are carried at lower of
cost and net realizable value. Cost included direct material and labour cost and proportion of
manufacturing overheads.

7) Employee/ Retirement Benefits

I) Employee Benefit Plan

The company makes contributions to Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance, National Pension

System etc, for eligible employees and these contributions are charged to statement of profit and loss on
accrual basis.

Liability for defined benefit plans i_e. gratuity and unfounded pension is determined based on the actnarial
valuation carried by an independent actuary as at the year-end. As these liabilities. are relatively long term
in nature, the actuarial assumptions take in account the requirements of the relevant IND AS coupled with
along-term view of the underlying variables / trends, wherever required.

II) Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to such benefits.

III) Compensated Absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related services are recognized as an actuarially determined liability at the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the Balance sheet date.

8) Foreign Currency Transactions

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency as at the Balance Sheet date are converted at exchange
rates prevailing on that date. Exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

9) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of items of property, plant and
equipment which take substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of
the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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10) Income Tax

Income tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss, except when it related to items recognized in the other comprehensive income
or items recognized directly in the equity. In such cases, the income tax expense is also recognized in the
other comprehensive income or directly in the equity as applicable.

Deferred taxes are recognized on the basis of the balance sheet approach on temporary differences, being
the difference between the carrymg amount of assets and liabilities in the balance Sheet and its
corresponding tax base, that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent
periods. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which such assets can be utilized.

11) Provision and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions for Contingencies/ Contingent liabilities are recognized / disclosed after evaluation of facts and
legal aspects of the matter involved, in line with IND AS 37 on Provisions, Contingent Liabilitics and
Contingent Assets. Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation
(legal/constructive) and on management judgment as a result of a past event, for which it is probable that a
cash outflow will be required, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. As the
timing of outflow of resources in uncertain, being dependent upon the outcome of the future proceedings,
these provisions are not discounted to their present value.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources, When there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be accrued /realized.

12) Impairment
(I} Financial Assets (Other than at faire value)

The Company asscsscs at cach datc of Balance shect whether a financial assct or a group of financial asscts
is impaired. IND AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance, The
Company recognizes lifetime expected losses forall contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not
constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets. expected credit losses are measured at an
amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition,

(IT) Non-Financial Assets
Tangible and Intangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability
whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable, If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and value-in-use) is determined
on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of
thosc from other asscts. In such cascs, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash gencrating unit
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(CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset {or CGU ) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

13) Earning Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity
sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the
purpose of calculation diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity
sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, ifany.
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED ON 318T MARCH 2020.

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Financial Assets
Note : 4 Investment (In Shares)
A) Fully Paid-up Equity Shares in Companies
Company Numbers Face
Value
31-03-  31-03- 31-03- 31-03-
2020 2019 2020 2019
i) Quoted Shares
Britannia Industries Ltd. 200 100 1 1 6,700 6,700
Castrol India Ltd. 8 8 5 5 240 240
Dabur India Ltd. 600 600 1 1 6,500 6,500
Procter & Gamble Health Limited
{Previously known as Merck (India) Ltd.) 10 10 19 0 4,700 4,700
Hindustan Unilever Ltd. 100 100 1 1 21,500 21,500
Novartis India Ltd. 10 10 5 5 3,250 3,250
42,890 42,890
i1} Unquoted Shares
Rasbihari Enterprises Ltd, BB496 88456 10 i0 2,716,972 2,716,972
STS Exports Ltd. 490 490 100 190 49,245 49,245
Syngenta India Ltd. 100 100 5 5 7,500 7,500
2,773, 17 2,773,717
iii) Unquoted Shares in Associate Company
Vidarbha Bidi Ltd. 39590 39590 10 i0 468,419 468419
Less : Prov. for Dimunation in value of Investment 468,419 468,419
Tip Top Health Zone Pvt Lid. 3650 3650 100 100 2,986,909 2,966,681
2,986,909 2,966,681
B) Others Unquoted
Ordinary Shares in
National Saving Certificates # - - - 11,000 11,000
11,000 11,000
5,814,516 5,794,288
NOTES
Quoted Investernnt (Market value) 1,080,161 1,077,527
Ungquoted Investemnt (Cost) 5,760,626 5,740,398

# Security Lodged with Sales Tax / Excise Authorities
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2020

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Note 5 ; Other Financial Assets
Security Deposits 660,778 660,778
Deposit with Govemment Authorities 16,611 16,611
Interest Accrued 15,624 14,258
693,013 691.647
Note : 6 Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
Deferred Tax Liabilitics
Property, Plant and equipment (566,000) {595,000)
(566,000) {595,000)
Deferred Tax Assets
Provison for Employee Benefits (29,000) 21,000
Provision for Escrow Fund 1,805,000 1,766,000
1,776,000 1,787,000
Net Deferred Tax Asset 1,210,000 1,192,000
Note : 7 Inventories (At lower of cost or net realisable value)
Raw Material 55,213,280 66,557,579
Traded Goods / Other Stock 222,855 697,200
55,436,135 67.254.779
Note : B Trade Receivables
Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated
Due within Six Months 23,418,673 21,181,412
23,418.673 21,181,412
Note : 9 Cash And Bank Balances
a. Cash on Hand 24947 28,486
b. With Scheduled Banks :
In Current Accounts 147,913 30,863
172,860 59.349
Note : 10 Current Tax Asset {Net)
Advance Income Tax (Net) 31,175 332,747
31,175 332,747
Note : 11 Other Current Assets
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received
Prepaid Expenses 247,757 208,187
247,757 208,187
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2020

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
RUPEES RUPEES

Note 12 : Share Capital
Authorized

2,00,000 Equity Shares of 20,00,000 20,00,000
Rs.5/- each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

4,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.5/- each fully paid 2,000,000 2,000,000
(Earlier year 2,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
Fully paid})

2,000,000 2,000,000

Notes:
a) With the effect from 31.07.19 share capital Qty is 4,00,000 and face value is 5/-each.

b) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity shares

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Number of Amount Rs. Numberof  Amount Rs.
shares shares
At the beginning of the period 400,000 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000
Issued during the period - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the period 400,000 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000

b) Terms / right attached to equity shares
There are no special right attached to equity shares other than those specified under provisions of various Acts.
c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Number of % ofholding  Number of % of holding
shares in the class shares in the class

Equity shares of Rs.5/- each fully paid
Rasbihari Enterpriscs Ltd. 116,800 29.20% 58,400 29.20%
Shri.Kisanlal Bastiramji Sarda 105,420 26.36% 52,710 26.36%
Sou.Kiran Kisanlal Sarda 36,340 9.09% 18,170 9.09%
Shri,Shrirang Kisanlal Sarda 27,440 6.86% 13,720 6.86%
Note 13 : Other Equity
General Reserve 20,201,000 20,201,000
Retained Earning 21,770,943 23,844,905
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the year {2,263,298) (2,073,962)

19,507,645 21,770,943

39,708,645 41,971,943
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2020

Particulars 31.03.2020  31.03.2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Note 14 : Long Term Borrowings
Asset Based Lending (From State Bank of India) 7,009,299 8,191,363
a. Secured by hypothecation of all current assets of the company both present and future
b. The above credit facility is further secured by equitable mortgage of certain fized assets,
c. The above credit facility is secured by personal guarantee of Shri K B Sarda.
7,009,299 8,191,363
Note : 15 Long Term Provisions
Paid Leave Payable 415,145 415,145
Escrow Fund Provision (Please refer Note : 27) 25,461,728 23,362,735
25,876,873 23,777,880
Note : 16 Short Term Borrowings
Asset Based Lending (From State Bank of India) 10,800,000 8,400,000
a. Secured by hypothecation of all current assets of the company both present and future
b. The above credit facility is further secured by equitable mortgage of certain fixed assets.
¢. The ahove credit facility is secured by personal guarantee of Shri K B Sarda.
10,800,000 8,400,000
Note : 17 Trade Payable
Trade Payable
- Due to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - -
- Due to Others (Net) 3,070,748 13,549,480
3,070,748 13,549,480
Note : 18 Employee Benefit Obligation
Salary Payable 448778 47978
Bonus Payable 567536 620962
Paid Leave Payable 148404 37999
Gratuity Payable - 169,487
1,164,718 876,426
Note : 19 Short Term Provisions
Other Provisions 331,934 372,489
331,934 372,489
Note : 20 Other Current Liabilities
Other Payable 959,942 1,855,745
Advances Received From Customers 6,000 -
965,942 1,855,745
965,942 1,855,745
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 318T MARCH 2020

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Note : 21 Revenue from Operations
A) Revenue from Operations {Gross)
Sales of Tobacco 51,494,978 54,041,581
Sales of By-Products 1,994,278 1,038,660
53,489,256 55,080,241
B) Other Operating Revenue (Processing Charges) 1,263,957 446,459
Storage Charges 17,094 9.022
54,770,307 55,535,722
Note : 22 Other Income
Dividend Received on Shares / Mutual Funds 10,682 8,638
Interest Received 39,559 1,267
Scrap / Bardan Sales 42,466 -
Sundry Receipts 20,648 35,162
Dr Cr Balance Written Off - 10,907
113,355 55,974
Note : 23 Cost of Material Consumed
A) Raw Material
Opening Stock 66,557,579 73,614,132
Add : Purchases 24,131,650 28,459,520
90,689,229 102,073,652
Less : Closing Stock 55,213,280 66,557,579
35,475,949 35,516,073
B) Packing Materials and Stores Consumed
Opening Stock 697,200 -
Add : Purchascs - 697,200
697,200 697,200
Less : Closing Stock 222 855 697,200
474,345 -
(A+B) 35,950,294 35,516,073
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 318T MARCH 2020

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
RUPEES RUPEES

Note : 24 Employee Benefit Expenses

Salaries, Wages, Bonus, Gratuity and Ex-gratia 8,832,584 9,747,034
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 1,090,500 1,198,896
Welfare Expenses 104,236 80,516
10,027,320 11,036,446

Note : 25 Finance Cost
Interest on Working Capital 2,183,323 3,209,746
Interest Other 1,980 248
2,185,303 3,209,994

Note : 26 Other Expenses

Rent 1,022,400 872,400
Rates and Taxes 240,017 249,790
Insurance 342,495 327475
Repairs and Maintenance 1,418,779 811,325
Transport, Coolie and Cartages 1,047,570 1,303,213
Travelling and Conveyance 149,434 153,534
Electricity Charges 472,593 575,679
Legal and Professional 707,359 559,851
Printing and Stationery 42,811 49,893
Postage and Telephone Expenses 48,621 49,884
Office Expenses 341,458 271,469
Loss on Sale of Assets 163 -
Bank Commission 3,321 4,522
Welfare Expenses (Farnmer) 319,500 266,500
Other Expenses 319,510 353,764

(Including Filing Fees, Listing Fee,Membership & Subscription,
Factory Exp, etc.)

Vehicle Expences 50,578 60,567

Miscellaneous Expenses 17,699 72,695
6,544,308 3,982,561

Note : 27 Exchange rate difference

Exchange Loss on restatement of Escrow Fund Demand Liability 2,098,993 1,393,970
2,098,993 1,393,970
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH 2020

Note:-

In past the caompany used to manufacture and sell 'Bidis'

The Bidi's manufactured by the company were sold to Traders / Exporters, who used to export them to various
countries. Bidi's sold to some such Traders / Exporters were exported by them to USA.

As per the prevailing law in USA, the responsibility of depositing the amount in Escrow Deposit Fund {On account of
sales of tobaceo products in that country) was of the manufactyrer of tobaceo products.

Accordingly , on the basis of demand raised against the company for non-fulfillment of this requireiment - a sum of
Rs.254.62 Lacs is provided for in the books of the company upto 3 1st March 2020. (31st March 2019 - Rs 233.63
Lacs) (Refer Note No,13)

Dwring the current year no any fresh demand was made against the company. The current year fipure of appearing in
Statement of Profit and Loss R5.20.99 Lacs represents foreign exchange loss on restatement of cutstanding liability of
escrow fund demand provision already made in earlier years (Previous year ; Loss Rs,13.94 Lacs)

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
RUPEES RUPEES

Note : 28 Other Comprehensive Income
Share of Profit From Associates {TTHZPL}) 20,228 4,298

20,228 4,298
NOTE 29: Contingent Liabilities

{lzims against the company not

acknowledged as debts :

) Escrow Fund Matter 2,758,969 2,531,528
b} Labonr / ESIC Matters B13,514 B13,514

No interest is caleulated on the above contingent

liabilities for want of information. -_— -_—
3,572,483 3,345,042

[n the opinion of the management , no provision is required against contingent liabilities stated above.

NOTE 30: Employee Benefit Plans

A) The cormpany has established a separate Gratuity Fund Trust to take care of the Gratuity Liability of its employees. It
is in formed that against the accrued gratuity liability as on 31st March, 2020 as certained by the companyof Rs.
20,25,423/-(Previous year Rs.19,06,703/-) the Gratuity Fund Trust has investments to the tune of Rs20,57,400/-
{Previous year Rs.17,37,216/-) The short fall of Rs NIL {Previousyear Rs.1,69,487/- ) has been provided for in the
accounts of the current year.

B Looking st the small number of employees as on 315t March 2020, the management is of the opinion that, the liability
provided for in the books / funds available with the Gratuity Fund Trustare sufficient to cover these obligations.

The Following table sets out the details of the defined benefit retirement plans and the amounts recoghised in the finangial
statements
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31.03.2020 31.03.2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Changes in benefit obligation
Benefit obligations, beginning of the vear 1906703 1855459
Plans assumed on acquisitions
Service cost 282528 312616
Interest cost 143765 146210
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liablity
Past service cost / (credit)
Acturial (Gains) / Losses on Obligation - due to change in 88371 41910
financial assumptions
Acturial (Gains) / Losses on Obligation - due to experience (298751) (236309)
Benefit paid (97193} (213183)
Benefit obligations, end of the year 2025423 1906703
2019-2020 2018-2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Changes in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginging of the year 1737216 1745310
Plans assurned on acquisitions
Interest income 147890 94940
Employer's contributions 269487 110149
Benefit paid (97193) (213183)
Remesurement - return on plan assets excluding amount included
in interest income
Fair value of plan assets, end of the year 2057400 1737216
2019-2020 2018-2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Funded Status
Deficit of plan assets aover obligations (169487
Surplus of plan assets over obligations 31977
31977 (169487)
2019-2020 2018-2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Category of assets
Bank balances 2057400 1737216
2057400 1737216
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Net periodic gratuity cost, included in employee cost consist of the following components :

SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

2019-2020 2018-2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Service cost 282528 312616
Net interest on net defined benefit {asset} / liability 143765 146210
Past service cost / (credit)
Net periodic gratuity cost 426293 458826
Actual return on plan assets 147890 94944)
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liablity / (asset)
2019-2020 2018-2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Actuarial {gains} and losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains} and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 88 371 41,910
Actuarial {gains} and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments (298,751) (236,309)
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liablity
Total (210,380) (194,399)
The assumptions used in accounting for the defined benefit plan are set out below :
2019-2020 2018-2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Discount Rate 6.82% 7.54%
Rate of increase in compensation levels of covered employees 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of return on plan assets
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligations 8 8
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH 2020.

Note 31 : Tax Expenses
a) Deferred Tax

Opening Recognised in | Recognised in | Closing balance
balance the statement of other
profit and loss | comprehensice
income
Property, plat and equipment (595000) {25000) - (566000)
Employee Benefit 21000 50000 - {29000}
Other 1766000 (3%000) - 1805000
1192000 {13000) - 1210000
b) Current Tax
2019-2020 2018-2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Current tax - -
Prior period tax - 2340
Deferred tax (18000) 72000
{18000) 74340
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 3158T MARCH 2020

2019-2020 2018-2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Note 31 : Auditors Remuneration
Auditor remuneration and expense in respect of :
Statutory audit 75000 75000
Tax Audit 25000 25000
Certification / others 5,000 18,000
Note 33 : Earning Per Share (EPS)
Profit/{Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders (A) {2263299) (2073962)
Basic / Weighted average nos. of Equity shares outstanding during the
year (B) 400,000 200,000
Nominal Value of Equity Shares 5 10
Basic & Diluted Earning per share (A/B) (5.66) (10.37)
Note 34 : Payment provided for or made during the year to Directors :
Salary to Whoie Time Director & CFC 2,715,727 2,595,537
Note 35 : Segment Reporting:
a) Primary Segment ;
The company considers Tobacco and
Tobacco Products and Bidi leaves as one business segment
b) Secondary Segment: NIL
i) Sales :-
Within India 54,770,307 55,535,722
Qutside India Nil Nil
ii) All Assets and Liabilities of the company are within India
except for :-
Long Term Provisions ( Escrow Fund Liability) 25,461,728 23,362,735
Note 36 : Value Imported znd Indigenous Material Consumed.
Raw Materials Consumed
Imported Nil Nil
Percentage Nil Nil
Indigenous 35,475,949 35,516,073
Percentage 100% 100%
Purchase of Stock- in-Trade
Imported Nil Nil
Percentage Nil Nil
Indigenous Nil Nil
Percentage Nil Nil
Note 37 : Earning and Expenditure in Foreign Currency Nil Nil

r g
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 318T MARCII 2020

2019-2020 2018-2019
RUPEES RUPEES

Note 38 : Related Party Disclosures

RELATED PARTIES WITH WHOM THE COMPANY HAD TRANSACTIONS, ETC
{i) Associates / Entities in which Promoters are able to

exercise significant influence :

Rasbihari Enterprises Ltd.

Vidarbha Bidi Lid.

Yogi Ayurvedic Products Pvt Lid.

Tip Top Health Zone Pvi.Ltd.

STS Exparts Lid.

M/s. S.K. Sarda.

Sungrowth Manpower Services Pvt Ltd.

City Centre Mall Nashik Pvt. Ltd.

Sarda Milk & Agro Produce Pvt. Lid.

Sarda Fresh Fruits LLP

Rasbihari Properties Pvt. Ltd.

Nashik Natural Products Pvt. Lid.

5.K.8arda Developers Pvt. Ltd.

. Sungrace Traders LLP

(ii) Relatives / Members of Promoter Gronp :

1.  Shti K B Sarda.

2. Sau K.K.Sarda.

3. ShriSK Sarda.

(iii) Key Management Personnel :
Shri.Madhav Deshpande - Whole Time Director & CFO
Shri Bhausaheb Pawar - Director
Shri.Laxminarayan Karwa - Director
Miss. Bharti Sancheti - Director
Ms Pratiksha Shah - Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

e U

— e e e A
B o s

Sr.  Nature of Transaction (Excluding reimbursement) {Rs.) (Rs.)
No.
1. Income / Receipts - -
Expenditure / Payments
Salary Expenses {Including Employer PF Contribution)
Shri.M.D.Deshpande 3,017,297 2,884,008
Other Expenses
Rasbihari Enterprises Lid. 422,400 422,400
M/s. Shrirang Kisanlal Sarda 600,000 450,000
3. Closing Balances
Assets - -
Rasbihari Enterpriss Ltd. 2,716,972 2,716,972
Vidarbha Bidi Ltd. 468,419 468,419
Tip Top Health Zone Pvt. Lid. 2,986,909 2,966,681
STS Exports Ltd. 49,245 49,245
Security Deposit
Rashihari Enterprises Ltd. 2,85,000 285,000
Liabilities
11.  Figures for the previous year have been regrouped wherever considered
practible and necessary.
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 3 1st March 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit and loss, and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020 and its profit/loss, and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s a material misstatemnent of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (*the Act™} with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and te issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

# Obtain anunderstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

& Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

‘We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Crder™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
Anncxure A a statcment on the maticrs specificd in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the cxtent
applicablc,

2, Asrequired by Scction 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account
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{(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2020 taken on
tecord by the Board of Ditectors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3 [st March, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company doesnot have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position

(ii) The Company did not have any long-tcrm contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any matenal foreseeable losses.

(iii) There hasbeen no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,

to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company

ForSABADRA& SABADRA
Chartered Accountants

Anant N, Sabadra,

Place : Nashik (Registration No.33683)
Date :-29th June 2020 FRN:108921W.
UDIN : 20033683AAAAAI2101
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED
ANNEXURE 'A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPQORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)
Report on Companies (Auditor’s Report) Ordeg 2016 (‘the Order') issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013
(*the Act) of SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED ('the Company')

i Inrespect of the Company's fixed assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, mncluding quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance
with a regular program of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such venification.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us
and based on the examination of the conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title
deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are frechold, are
held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

1i As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

i As informed to us the Company has not granted loans, unse¢cured, to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. The terms and conditions of grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company. There is no schedule of repayment of the loan granted and the account is regular and it is
not overdue. The payment of interest isregular

iv.  As explained to us, Company has not granted any loan, investments, guarantees and security
during the year ended as at 31st March, 2020.

v The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the direetives issucd by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Act and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits
accepted from the public are notapplicable

vi  As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on
bythe company.

vii  Accordingtothe information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-
Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any
other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in
arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they
become payable.
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b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on account
of any dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks and financial institutions. The
Company has not issued any debentures.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not
applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given fo us, no
fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed
orreported during the year,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188
of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

Duning the vear, the Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares
and hence reporting under ¢lause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to
its Directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable.

In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.,

For SABADRA & SABADRA
Chariered Accountants

Anant N. Sabadra,

Place : Nashik (Registration No0.33683)
Date :-29th June 2020 FRN : 108921W.

UDIN : 20033683AAAAAI2101
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on
the consolidated Financial Statements of SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over consolidated financial reporting of SINNAR
BIDI UDYOG LIMITED (“thec Company™) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management 1s responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over consolidated financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note onAudit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Aunditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
consolidated financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over consolidated financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

QOur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over consolidated financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over consolidated financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over consolidated financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a matenal weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the nisks of material misstaternent of the consolidated financial statcments,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over consolidated financial
Teporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over consolidated Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over consolidated financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of consolidated financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over consolidated financial
reporting includes those policics and proccdures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over consolidated Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over consolidated financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, matenal
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls over consolidated financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the intemal financial control over consolidated financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over consolidated financial reporting and such internal financial controls over consolidated financial
reporting were operating effectively as atMarch 31,2020, based on the internal control over consolidated
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the cssential components of internal

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over consolidated Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForSABADRA& SABADRA
Chartered Accountants
Anant N, Sabadra,

Place : Nashik (Registration No.33683)

Date :-29th June 2020 FRN:108921W,

UDIN : 20033683AAAAAL2101
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHELET AS AT 318T MARCH 2020.

Particulars Note 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
No RUPEES RUPEES
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 3 3,904,029 4,280,917
Intangible assets 3 - -
Financial Assets
Iovestments 4 5,814,516 5,794,288
Other Financial Assets 5 693,013 691,647
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 6 1,210,000 1,192,000
11,621,558 11,958,852
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 7 55,436,135 67.,254F7%
Financial Assets
Trade Receivable 8 23 418 673 21,181,412
Cash and Bank Balances 9 172,860 59,349
Current Tax Asset {Net) 10 31,175 332,747
Other Current Assets 11 247,757 208,187
79,306,600 89,036,474
Total 90,928,158 100,995,326
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share Capital 12 2,000,000 2,000,000
Cther Equity 13 39,708,645 41,971,943
41,708,645 43,971,943
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABLITIES
Financial Liabilities
Long -Term Borrowings 14 7,009,259 8,191,363
Provisions 15 25,876,873 23,777,880
32,886,172 31,969,243
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Short-Term Borrowings 16 10,800,000 8,400,000
Trade Payable 17 3,070,748 13,549,480
Empleyee Benefit Oblipaticn 18 1,164,718 B76,426
Provisions 19 331,933 372,489
Other Current Liabilities 20 965,942 1,855,745
16,333,342 25,054,140
Total 90,928,158 100,995,326
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1&2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statemenis 29 to 38
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For SABADEA & SABADRA, Laxminarayan Karwa Director
Chartered Accountants, DIN - (30333020
Madhav Deshpande WTD and CFO
Anant N. Sabadra, DIN - 00238917
Mem. No. 033683
FRN:108921wW Pratiksha Shah Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Place : Nashik Membership No A-5T487

Date ; 29th June 2020

Date ; 29th June 2020
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STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH 2020

Particulars Refer Note 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
No. RUPEES RUPEES
Income
[ Revenue from Operations 21 54,770,307 55,535,722
II Other Income 22 113,355 55,974
[I Total Revenue (I) 34,883,662 55,591,696
Expenses
Cost of material consumed 23 35,950,294 35,516,073
Emplovee Benefits Expense 24 10,027,320 11,036,446
Finance Cost 25 2,185,303 3,209,994
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 3 378,970 456,572
Other Expense 26 6,544,308 5,982,561
Exchange rate difference 27 2,098,993 1,393,970
[V  Total Expenses 37,185,188 37,595,616
V  Profit for the Year (2,301,527) (2,003,920)
VII Tax Expenses
Current Tax - -
Prior Period Tax - 2,340
Deferred Tax (18,000) 72,000
(18,000) 74,340
VIII Profit / (Loss) for the year (2,283,527) (2,078,260)
V1 Other Comprehensive Income
Other Comprehensive income from Associates. 28 20,228 4,298
Profit / (Loss) before Tax (2,263,299) (2,073,962)
Earning Per Equity Share of Face Value of 5/- each, (5.66) (10.37)
Basic (5.66} (10.37)
Diluted
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1&2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the
financial statements 29 to 38.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For SABADRA & SABADRA, Laxminarayan Karwa Director
Chartered Accountants, DIN - 00333020
Madhav Deshpande WTD and CFO
Anant N, Sabadra, DIN - 00238917
Mem. No. 033682
FRN:108921W Pratiksha Shah Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Place : Nashik Membership No A-57487

Date : 29th June 2020

Date : 29th June 2020
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

Particulars 31.03.20 31.03.19
EUFPEES RUPEES
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ¢
Met Profit Before Tax and Extragrdinary hems {2,301,526) {2,003,920}
ADJUSTMENTS FOR :
Dcprociation 378,970 456,572
(Cain) f Losd on Salcy of Fixed Asgets (Net) 1563 -
Adjust. Relating to Earlier Year (MNet) / Extraordinary [tems 2,098 993 1,393 970
Interest Paid 2,185,103 3,209 594
Dividend on Investmenis (10,682 (8,638)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 2,351,221 3,047,978
ADIUSTMENTS FOR MOVEMENT IN WORKING CAPITAL
Trade Payable (10,478,732} {3,783 47%)
Employee Benefit Obigation 288,292 54,706
Short -Termo Provisions (40,5563 (40,125}
Othetr Current Liabilities (BES.R03) (295,113}
Trade Receivable {2,237,261) 16,650,197
Crther Current Assets {39,570 1,182
Inventories 11,818,646 6,359,355
Caah Genergted from Operatons 772,237 21,994,704
Direct Taxea Refund / ( Paid } Met 301,570 -
Cash Flow Before Extra Ordinarcy Items 1,073,807 21,994,704
Net Cash from /{used In) Operating Activities {A) 1073807 21,994 704
CASH FLOW FRONMNM INYESTING ACTI¥ITIES
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment {4,245} (12,595}
Sale of Property, plant and equipment 2,000 -
Balances not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents
- Placed (nct) - -
Sale of Invesnnents - Non Current - -
Dividend Received on Invesunents 10,682 B 638
Investment in FDR - -
Interest Received - -
Net Cash from fused ind Investing Activities {B) 8437 (3957}
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Interest Paid {2.185,303) (3.209.994)
Unclaimed Dividend Paid - -
Procecds from Long-term Bormowing {1,182,064) {18,826,055)
Proceeds from Short-renm Bormowing 2,400,000 -
Procecds from Oiher Financial Asscis {1,366} a56
Net Cash (rom Aused in) Financing Actlvities {C) (968,733) 22,035,693
MNet Cash Inflaw/ {Tutflow) {A) +(BY 1{C) 113,511 {44,945)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 01.04,2019
(Opening Balance) {Im £0.349 104,204
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31.03.2020
{Closing Balancc) {E) 172,260 59340
Net Increass / (Decrease) In Cash
Cash Equivalents {E) - (D) 113,511 {44.94%)
Note :

Direct taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies { Wote 1&2 )
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements - 29 to 38,

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For SABADRA & SABADRA, Laxminarayan Karwa Dhrector
Chartered Accountanis, DN - 00333020
Madhav Deshpande WTD and CFO
Anant N. Sabadra, DIN - 00238917
Mem. No. 033683
FRN10B921W Pratiksha Shah Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Place : Nask Membership No A-37487
Date : 29th June 2020 Date : 29th June 2020

46" ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 (:78)




SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2020

NOTE: 1
CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sinnar Bidi Udyog Ltd. ("the Company") is a company domiciled in India, with its registered office
situated at 202 2nd Floor Terminal - 9 75 Nehru Road Vile Parle East Mumbai 400099, The Company has
been incorporated under the provisions of Indian Companies Act and its equity shares are listed on the BSE
Limited in India. The Company is primarily involved in Tobacco processing business.

NOTE2:
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1) Statement of Compliance

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate A ffairs, the Company has adopted
Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as "IND AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from April 1, 2016.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IND AS as notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013,

2) Use of Estimates

The preparation and presentation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual result and
gstimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / materialized

3) Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of products is recognized on transfer of all significant risks and rewards of
ownership to the buyer which coincides with dispatch of products to customers.

Interest mcome 1s recognized on time proportion basis. Dividend income on investment is accounted for
when night to receive is established.

4) Property Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant, & equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accurmnulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes or levies (net of recoverable taxes) and
any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to their working condition for intended use.

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are
disclosed as " Capital work-in-progress".

Profit or Loss on disposal / scrapping / write off / retirement from active use of an item of property, plant
and equipment is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

Depreciation/Amortization

The company has assessed the useful lives of fixed assets as per Schedule 11 to the Compamies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, depreciation has been computed on useful lives based on technical evaluation of relevant
class of assets including components thereof. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually.
Depreciation is provided as per the straight-line method computed basis useful lives of fixed assets as
follows:

Buildings : 60 years
Plant & Machinery : 10 vears
Office Equipments : 5 yecars

Furniture and fixtures : 10 years
Vehicles : 10 years

Information technology equipment : 3 years

Freehold land is not depreciated, Leasehold land and related improvements are amortized over the period
ofthe lease.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost as of the date of acquisition, as applicable, less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment, if any.

Intangible assets consist of rights under licensing agreement and software licenses which are amortized
over license period which equates the useful life ranging between 2-5 years on a straight-line basis.

5) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that arc dircctly attributable to the acquisition or issuc of financial asscts and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

Cash and Cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of
three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of
balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a
business whose objective is to hold these assets to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets
are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on
specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding and
selling financial assets.
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

The Company has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value of equity investments not held for trading.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognized in profitor loss

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after
deducting all of its liabilities. equity instruments recognized by the Company are recognized at the
proceeds received net off direct issue cost.

Investment in associates
Investment in associates are measured at cost less impairment,
6) Inventories

a) Raw matenals, packing material and consumables are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. Purchased goods-in-transit are carried at cost.
Work-in-progress is carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Stores and spare parts are carried
at lower of cost and net realizable value. Finished goods produced or purchased by the Company are
carried at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost included direct material and labour cost and
proportion of manufacturing overheads.

b) Book Debts, Advances & Deposits

Balances considered irrecoverable are wnitten-off and those considered doubtful are provided for.
7)Employee/Retirement Benefits

I) Employee Benefit Plan

The company makes contributions to Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance, National Pension
System etc. for eligible employees and these contributions are charged to statement of profit and loss on
accrual basis.

Liability for defined benefit plans i.e. gratuity and unfounded pension is determined based on the actuarial
valuation carried by an independent actuary as at the year-end. As these liabilities. are relatively long term
in nature, the actuarial assumptions take in account the requirements of the relevant IND AS coupled with
along-term view of the underlying variables / trends, wherever required.

II) Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions ta defined contribution plans are recognized as expense when employees have rendered
services entithing therm to such benefits,

IIT) Compensated Absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related services are recognized as an actuarially determined liability at the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the Balance sheet date,
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8) Foreign Currency Transactions

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency as at the Balance Sheet date are converted at exchange
rates prevailing on that date. Exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

9) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of items of property, plant and
equipment which take substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of
the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

10) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Payments made under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the statement of profitand lossona
straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless such payments are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases, in which
case the same is recognized as an expense in line with the contractual term.

11) Income Tax

Income tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss, except when it related to items recognized in the other comprehensive income
or items recognized directly in the equity. In such cases, the income tax expense is also recognized in the
other comprehensive income or directly in the equity as applicable.

Deferred taxes are recognized basis the balance sheet approach on tempaorary differences, being the
difference between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the balance Sheet and its corresponding
tax base, that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.
Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which such assets can be utilized.

12) Provision and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions for Contingencies/ Contingent liabilities are recognized / disclosed after evaluation of facts and
legal aspects of the matter involved, in line with IND AS 37 on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets. Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation
(legal/constructive) and on management judgment as a result of a past event, for which it is probable that a
cash outflow will be required, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. As the
timing of outflow of resources in uncertain, being dependent upon the outcome of the future proceedings,
these provisions are not discounted to their present value.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources, When there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation n respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be accrued / realized.
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13) Impairment
(I} Financial Assets (Other than at faire value)

The Company assesses at each date of Balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets
1s impaired. IND AS 109 requires expected ¢redit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The
Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and/ or all trade receivables that do not
constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets. expected credit losses are measured at an
amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit nisk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

(II) Non-Financial Assets
Tangible and Intangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability
whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable, If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount (i.¢. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and value-in-use) is determined
on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of
those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit
{CGU)to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU ) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized in the staternent of profit and loss.

14) Earning Per Share

Basic carnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the penod. For the
purpose of calculation diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares cutstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects ofall dilutive potential equity shares, ifany.

46" ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 (__83)




SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

@)

68Ty  LIGOST'F TZI'OEL'TT - TLE'0SH GPSELTTT  SEO'TIOCLT - S65'TT £bP'866'¢T JBIA SO0TARL]
LIG'OST'Y  6T0°'POG'E  PSE'OOTET LELT 0L6'8LE [ZI°0EL°TT  E8EOT0LT 006 SHT'¥ SE0°'TIOL] [e10L
¥TL'LS £9L'0F 6TF'LO LEL'T B6L'FI 89€°5¢ 761801 006°F 60°'E1T SAAIA
014 014 06F°8F - - 041’8 00F'6r oor'er dbg mssesardere 2 ssandwros)
0Z0'LIT or1'zé ¥I8'Z16'E - §TI'6T 680°ERE'E  PSE'POOF SFZ'F &0L'000°F simwdmby 13qE ¥ 20O
97582 97¢'8T £€9'0EE"T - - £CO'0EE'l  BLIGSE'] GLI'6SET amuxL] % alumimg
66F'59 F16'9s 890°17L - $15"% £erTIL TO6'LEL TO6'LLL DOIE[[eIsU] 9L0aa|g
759196 98¢'E8L  &THLIT - S90'8L1 £9E°867' T SI0'09F'E CI009t'E ALDUITORIN PUY Wikld
LTLGPRT  1ZEIOLT  LLPerEP - S0P SO0'0Z'r  TGLI0SOL T6L'080°L s3uiprmg
658°661 658'661 - - - 658'661 658661 pue] plogaalg
mag Ay
Fuumg Iean
GI0TEDIE OTEDIE  OTEOIE 61071 OTEQ1E  SIISTEL ¥ 9yl Suumgg 610TF1
1B Sy ESY ojdn  [eo]  NOERUANUA B3R S IO IE 5y BBy suoTanpa(] SUONIPPY 'Y
MDOT4 LAN NOLLVIDTAdAa MDOTH SS0UD
{ "5y W umotTy ) ymmdinba pre jned Apsadosg

g1 390N

0207 HOHYI 1S1£ NO JAANT HVIA JHL YO SINTWALVLS TVIONV¥NIA QAIVAI'TOSNOD OL1 S410N

46" ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20




SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 318T MARCH 2020

Particulars 31.03.2020  31.03.2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Financial Assets
Note : 4 Investment (In Shares)
A) Fully Paid-up Equity Shares in Companies
Company Numbers Face
Value
31-03- 31-03-  3i-03- 31-03-
2020 2019 2020 2019
i) Quoted Shares
Britannia [ndustries Lid. 200 100 1 1 6,700 6,700
Castrol India Ltd. 8 B 5 5 240 240
Dabur India Ltd. 600 600 1 | 6,500 6,500
Procter & Gamble Health Limited
{Previously known as Merck (India) Ltd.) 10 10 10 10 4,700 4,700
Hindustan Unilever Ltd. 100 100 1 1 21,500 21,500
Novartis India Ltd. 10 10 5 5 3,250 3,250
42,890 42,890
ii) Unquoted Shares
Rasbihari Enterprises Ltd. 88406 88496 10 10 2,716,972 2,716,972
STS Exports Lid. 490 490 100 100 49,245 49,245
Syngenta India Ltd. 100 100 5 5 7,500 7,500
2,773,717 2,773,717
iif) Unquoted Shares in Associate Company
Vidarbha Bidi Ltd. 39580 39590 10 10 468,419 468,419
Less : Prov. for Dimunation in value of Investment 468,419 468,419
Tip Top Health Zone Pvt Ltd. 3650 3650 100 100 2,986,909 2,966,681
2,986,909 2,966,681
B) Others Unquoted
Ordinary Shares in
National Saving Certificates # - - 11,000 11,000
11,000 11,000
5,814,516 5,794,288
NOTES
Quoted [ovestemnt (Market value) 1,080,161 1,077,327
Unquoted Investemnt (Cost) 5,760,626 5,740,398

# Security Lodged with Sales Tax / Excise Authorities
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2020

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Note 5 : Other Financial Assets
Security Deposits 660,778 660,778
Deposit with Government Authorities 16,611 16,611
Interest Accrued 15,624 14,258
693,013 691,647

Note : ¢ Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
Deferred Tax Liabilitics

Property, Plant and equipment (566,000) (595,000)
(566,000) (595,000)
Deferred Tax Assets
Provison for Employee Benefits (29,000) 21,000
Provision for Escrow Fund 1,805,000 1,766,000
1,776,000 1,787,000
Net Deferred Tax Asset 1,210,000 1,192,000
Note : 7 Inventories (At lower of cost or net realisable value)
Raw Material 55,213,280 66,557,579
Traded Goods / Other Stock 222 855 697,200
55,436,135 67,254,779

Note : 8 Trade Receivables
Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated

Due within Six Months 23,418,673 21,181,412
23.418.673 21,181.412
Note : 9 Cash And Bank Balances
a. Cash on Hand 24,947 28,486
b. With Scheduled Banks :
In Current Accounts 147,913 30,863
172,860 59.349
Note : 10 Current Tax Asset (Net)
Advance Income Tax (Net) 31,175 332,747
31,175 332,747

Note : 11 Other Current Assets

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received

Prepaid Expenses 247,757 208,187
247,757 208,187
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2020

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Note 12 : Share Capital
Authorized
2,00,000 Equity Shares of 20,600,000 20,00,000
Rs.5/- each
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
4,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.5/- each fully paid 2,000,000 2,000,000
{Earlicr ycar 2,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- cach
Fully paid)
2,000,000 2,000,000

Notes:

a) With the effect from 31.07.19 share capital Qty is 4,00,000 and face value is 5/~each.
b) Reconciliation of the shares ovtstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Number of AmountRs. Numberof — Amount Rs.
shares shares
At the beginning of the period 400,000 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000

Issued during the period - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the period 400,000 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000

b) Terms / right attached to equity shares
There are no special right attached o equity shares other than those specified under provisions of various Acts.

¢) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Number of % of holding  Numberof % of holding
shares in the class shates in the class

Equity shares of Rs.5/- each fully paid
Rasbihari Enterprises Ltd. 116,800 29.20% 58,400 29.20%
Shri.Kisanla] Bastiramji Sarda 105,420 26.36% 52,710 26.36%
Sou.Kiran Kisanlal Sarda 36,340 9.09% 18,170 9.09%
shri, Shrirang Kisanlal Sarda 27,440 6.86% 13,720 6.86%
Note 13 : Other Equity
General Reserve 20,201,000 20,201,000
Retained Earning 21,770,943 23,844,905
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the year (2,263,298) (2,073,962)

19,507,645 21,770,943

39,708,645 41,971,943
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2020

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Note 14 ; Long Term Borrowings
Asset Based Lending (From State Bank of India) 7,009,299 8,191,363
a. Secured by hypothecation of all current assets of the company both present and future
b. The above credit facility is further secured by equitable mortgage of certain fixed assets.
¢. The above credit facility is secured by perscnal guarantee of Shri K B Sarda.
7,009,299 8,191,363
Note ; 15 Long Term Provisions
Paid Leave Payable 415,145 415,145
Escrow Fund Provision (Please refer Note : 27) 25,461,728 23,362,735
25,876,873 23,777,880
Note : 16 Short Term Borrowings
Asset Based Lending (From State Bank of India) 10,800,000 8,400,000
a. Secured by hypothecation of all current assets of the company both present and future
b. The above credit facility is further secured by equitable mortgage of certain fixed assets.
c. The above credit facility is secured by personal guarantee of Shri K B Sarda.
10,800,000 8,400,000
Note : 17 Trade Payable
Trade Payable
- Due to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises - -
- Due to Others {Net) 3,070,748 13,545 480
3,070,748 13,549,480
Note : 18 Employee Benefit Obligation
Salary Payable 448778 47978
Bonus Payable 567536 620962
Paid Leave Payable 148404 37999
Gratuity Payable - 169,487
1,164,718 876,426
Note : 19 Short Term Provisions
Other Provisions 331,934 372,489
331,934 372,489
Note : 20 Other Current Liabilities
Other Payable 959,942 1,855,745
Advances Received From Customers 6,000 -
965,942 1,855,745
965,942 1,855,745
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 318T MARCH 2020

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Note : 21 Revenue from Operations
A) Revenue from Operations (Gross)
Sales of Tobacco 51,494,978 54,041,581
Sales of By-Products 1,994,278 1,038,660
53,489,256 55,080,241
B} Other Operating Revenue (Processing Charges) 1,263,957 446,459
Storage Charges 17,094 9,022
54,770,307 55,535,722
Note : 22 Other Income
Dividend Received on Shares / Mutual Funds 10,682 8,638
Interest Received 39,559 1,267
Scrap / Bardan Sales 42,466 -
Sundry Receipts 20,648 35,162
Dr Cr Balance Wntten Off - 10,907
113,355 55,974
Note : 23 Cost of Material Consumed
A) Raw Material
Opening Stock 66,557,579 73,614,132
Add : Purchases 24,131,650 28,459,520
90,689,229 102,073,652
Less : Closing Stock 55,213,280 66,557,579
35,475,949 35,516,073
B) Packing Materials and Stores Consumed
Opening Stock 697,200 -
Add : Purchases - 697,200
697,200 697,200
Less : Closing Stock 222 855 697,200
474,343 -
(A+B) 35,950,294 315,516,073
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH 2020

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Note ;: 24 Employee Benefit Expenses
Salaries, Wages, Bonus, Gratuity and Ex-gratia 8,832,584 9,747,034
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 1,090,500 1,198,896
Welfare Expenses 104,236 90,516
10,027,320 11,036,446
Note : 25 Finance Cost
Interest on Working Capital 2,183,323 3,209,746
Interest Other 1,980 248
2,185,303 3,209,994
Note : 26 Other Expenses
Rent 1,022,400 872,400
Rates and Taxes 240,017 249,790
Insurance 342,493 327,475
Repairs and Maintenance 1,418,779 811,325
Transport, Coolie and Cartages 1,047,570 1,303,213
Travelling and Conveyance 149,434 153,534
Electricity Charges 472,593 575,679
Legal and Professional 707,359 559,851
Printing and Stationery 42,811 49,893
Postage and Telephone Expenses 48,621 49,884
Office Expenses 341,458 271,469
Loss on Sale of Assets 163 -
Bank Commission 3,321 4,522
Welfare Expenses (Farmer) 319,500 266,500
Other Expenses 319,510 353,764
(Including Filing Fees, Listing Fee Membership & Subscription,
Factory Exp, etc.)
Vehicle Expences 50,578 60,567
Miscellaneous Expenses 17,699 72,695
6,544,308 5,982,561
Note : 27 Exchange rate difference
Exchange Loss on restatement of Escrow Fund Demand Liability 2,098,993 1,393,970
2,098,993 1,393,970
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2020

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019
RUPEES RUPEES

Note:-

In past the company used to manufacture and sell Bidis'

The Bidi's manufactured by the company were sold to Traders / Exporiers, who used io expori them to various
countries. Bidi's sold to some such Traders / Exporters were exported by them to USA.

As per the prevailing law in USA, the responsibility of depositing the amount in Escrow Deposit Fund (On account of
sales of tobacco products in that country) was of the manufacturer of tobacco products,

Accordingly , on the basis of demand raised against the company for non-fulfillment of this requirernent - a sum of
Rs.254.62 Lacs is provided for in the books of the company upto 31st March 2020. (31st March 2019 - Rs 233.63
Lacs) (Refer Note No.15)

During the current year no any fresh demand was made against the company. The current year figure of appearing in
Statement of Profit and Loss Rs.20.99 Lacs represents foreign exchange loss on restatement of outstanding liability of
eserow fund demand provision already made in garlier years (Previous year ; Loss Rs. 13,94 Lags)

Note ; 28 Other Comprehensive Income
Share of Profit From Associates (TTHZPL) 20,228 4,298

20,228 4,298

NOTE 29: Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the company not

acknowledged as debts :
a) Escrow Fund Matier 2,758,969 2,531,528
b) Labour / ESIC Matters 813,514 813,514

No interest is calculated on the above contingent liabilities for want of information.

3,572,483 3,345,042

In the opinion of the management, no provision is required against contingent liabilities stated above.
NOTE 30: Employee Benefit Plans

A} The company has established 2 seperate Gratuity Fund Trust to take care of the Gratuity Liability of its employees. It is informed that
against the accrued gratuity liability as on 31st March, 2020 ascertained by the company of Rs. 20,25,423/- (Previous year Rs.19,06,703/-) the
Cratuity Fund Trust has investments {o the tune of Rs 20,57,400/- (Previous year Rs 17,37.216/-) The shortfall of Rs NIL (Previous year
Rs.1,69,487/- ) has been provided for in the accounts of the current year.

B) Looking at the small number of employees as on 31st March 2020, the management is of the opinion that, the liability provided for in the
books / funds available with the Gratuity Fund Trust are sufficient to cover these obligations,

The Following table sets out the details of the defined benefit retirement plans and the amounts recognised in the financial statements

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
RUPEES RUPEES

Changes in benefit obligation
Benefit obligations, beginning of the year 1906703 1855459
Plans assumed on acquisitions
Service cost 282528 312616
Interest cost 143765 146210
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liablity
Past service cost / {credit)
Acturial {Gains) / Losses on Obligation - due to change in financial assumptions B3371 41910
Acturial {Gains) / Losses on Obligation - due to experience (298751} {236309)
Benefit paid {971593) {213183)
Benefit obligations, end of the year 2025423 1906703
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Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Changes in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginging of the year 1737216 1745310
Plans assumed on acquisitions
Interest income 147890 94940
Employer's contributions 269487 110149
Benefit paid (97193) (213183)
Remesurement - return on plan assets excluding amount included in interest income
Fair value of plan assefs, end of the year 2057200 1737216
Funded Status
Deficit of plan assets over obligations (169487)
Surplus of plan assets over obligations 31977
31977 (169487)
Category of assets
Bank balances 2057400 1737216
20574200 1737216
Net periodic gratuity cost, included in employee cost
consist of the following components :
Service cost 282528 312616
Net interest on net defined benefit (asset) / liability 143765 146210
Past service cost / {credit)
Net periodic gratuity cost 426293 458826
Actual return on plan assets 147890 94940
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liablity / (asset)
Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 88,371 41,910
Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes in experience adjustments (298,751) (236,309)
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liablity
Total 210,380 (194,399)
The assumptions used in accounting for the defined benefit plan 2019-2020 201R-2019
are set out below :
Discount Rate 6.82% 7.54%
Rate of increase in compensation levels of covered employees 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of return on plan assets
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligations 8 8
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH 2020

Note 31 ;: Tax Expenses

a) Deferred Tax
Opening Recognised in | Recognised in |Closing balance
balance the statement of other
profit and loss | comprehensice
income
Property, plat and equipment (595000) (29000) - (366000)
Employee Benefit 21000 56000 - (29000)
Other 1766000 (39000) - 1805000
1192000 {18000) - 1210000
b} Current Tax
2019-2020 2018-2019
RUPEES RUPEES
Current tax - -
Prior pericd tax - 2340
Deferred tax (18000) 72000
{18000) 74340
I
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Particulars 2019-2020 2019-2018
RUPEES RUPEES
Note 32 : Auditors Remuneration
Auditor remuneration and expense in respect of :
Statutory audit 75000 75000
Tax Audit 25000 25000
Certification / others 5,000 18,000
Note 33 : Earning Per Share (EPS)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders (A) (2263299 (2073962)
Basic / Weighted average nos. of Equity shares outstanding
during the year (B) 400,000 200,000
Nominal Value of Equity Shares 5 10
Basic & Diluted Earning per share (A/B) (5.66) (10.37)
Note 34 : Payment provided for or made during the year to Directors :
Salary to Whole Time Director & CFQO 2,715,727 2,595,537
Nuote 35 : Segment Reporting:
a) Primary Segment :
The company considers Tobacco and
Tobacco Products and Bidi leaves as one business segment
b) Secondary Segment :  NIL
1) Sales :-
Within India 54,770,307 55,535,722
Outside India Nil Nil
ii) All Assets and Liabilities of the company are within India
except for ;-
Long Term Provisions ( Escrow Fund Liability) 25,461,728 23,362,735
Note 36 : Value Imported and Indigenous Material Consumed.
Raw Materials Consumed
Imported Nil Nil
Percentage Nil Nil
Indigenous 35,475,949 35,516,073
Percentage 100%4 100%
Purchase of Stock- in-Trade
Imported Nil Nil
Percentage Nil Nil
Indigenous Nil Nil
Percentage Nil Nil
Note 37 : Earning and Expenditure in Foreign Currency Nil Nil

r g
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SINNAR BIDI UDYOG LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH 2020

Particulars 2019-2020 2019-2018
RUPEES RUPEES
Note 38 : Related Party Disclosures
RELATED PARTIES WITH WHOM THE COMPANY HAD TRANSACTIONS, ETC
( i) Associates / Entities in which Promoters are able to
exercise significant influence :
1. Rasbihari Enterprises Ltd.
2. Vidarbha Bidi Lid.
3. Yogi Ayurvedic Products Pvt Litd.
4. Tip Top Health Zone Pvt.Ltd.
5. STS Exports Lid.
6. M/s. S.K. Sarda.
7. Sungrowth Manpower Services Pvt Litd.
8. City Centre Mall Nashik P+wt, Ltd.
9. BSarda Milk & Agro Produce Pvt. Litd.
10. Sarda Fresh Fruiis LLP
11. Rasbihari Properties Pvt. Lid.
12. Nashik Natural Products Pvt. Ltd.
13. S.K.Sarda Decvelopers Pvt. Lid.
14. Sungrace Traders LLP
( ii ) Relatives / Members of Promoter Group :
1. Shri K B Sarda.
2. Sau K.K.Sarda.
3. 8hri 8 K Sarda .
(iii) Key Management Personnel :
Shri Madbav Deshpande - Whole Time Director & CFO
Shri Bhausaheb Pawar - Director
Shri.Laxminarayan Karwa - Director
Miss. Bharti Sancheti - Director
Ms Pratiksha Shah - Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Sr Namre of Transaction { Excluding reimbursement) : (Rs.) (Rs.)
No.
1. Income / Receipts - -
2. Expenditure / Payments
Salary Expenses (Including Employer PF Contribution)
Shri.M.D.Deshpandc 3,017,297 2,884 008
Other Expenses
Rasbihari Enterprises Ltd. 422,400 422 400
M/s Shrirang Kisanlal Sarda 600000 450,000
3. Closing Balances
Assets - -
Investments
Rasbihari Enterprises Litd. 2,716,972 2,716,972
Vidarbba Bidi Ltd. 468,419 468,419
Tip Top Health Zone Pvt.Ltd. 2,986,909 2,966,681
STS Exports Ltd. 49,245 49,245
Security Deposit
Rasbibari Enterprises Litd. 285,000 285,000

Liabilities
11. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped
wherever considered practible and necessary.
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